Agenda
For enquiries on this agenda, please contact:
Gary Marson, Democratic Services Team Leader
Tel: 0208 547 5021/email: gary.marson@kingston.gov.uk
Published on 18 March 2019

Community Engagement Committee
Date:

Tuesday 26 March 2019

Time:

7:30 pm

Place:

Guildhall, Kingston-upon-Thames

Members of the Committee
Councillor Jon Tolley (Chair), Councillor Liz Green (Vice Chair), Councillor Olivia
Boult, Councillor Kevin Davis, Councillor Lorraine Dunstone, Councillor Mark
Durrant, Councillor Ian George, Councillor Dennis Goodship, Councillor Caroline
Kerr, Councillor Katrina Lidbetter and Councillor John Sweeney

Everyone is welcome to attend the meeting
This agenda is available to view on: www.kingston.gov.uk
You can also access this agenda through the Modern.gov app or by scanning the QR
code with your smartphone.

2

AGENDA
1.

Public Questions
A period of up to 30 minutes for public questions on matters relevant to the
Committee’s remit which are not related to items featuring on the agenda. Advance
notice of questions is preferred but not essential.

2.

Apologies for Absence and Attendance of Substitute Members

3.

Declarations of Interest
Members are invited to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests and any other
non pecuniary interests (personal interests) relevant to items on the agenda

4.

Minutes
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 5 February 2019.

5.

Customer Service Improvement Plan and Customer Access
Appendix A
Strategy
To provide an update to the Committee on progress with implementing the
Customer Access Strategy.

6.

Statement of Community Involvement
Appendix B
To authorise consultation on the revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
which explains how the Council will involve residents and other interested parties in
producing planning policy and guidance documents and determining planning
applications.

7.

Kingston BID 4 - Ballot
Appendix C
To approve the commencement of the ballot process for Kingston First (Business
Improvement District 4).

8.

Urgent Items Authorised by the Chair
To consider any items which, in the view of the Chair, should be dealt with as a
matter of urgency because of special circumstances in accordance with S100B(4)
of the Local Government Act 1972.

9.

Exclusion of Press & Public
The following resolution is included if any exempt matter is to be considered at the
meeting for which the Committee wish to resolve to exclude the press and public:
To exclude the public from the meeting under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that it is likely that exempt information, as
defined in paragraph *….of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act, would be disclosed
and the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.
(*relevant regulatory paragraph to be indicated)

3

Welcome to this meeting.
Notice of Webcast
This meeting is being filmed for live and subsequent recorded broadcast via the Council's
website. The images and sound recording may also be used for training purposes within the
Council. Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However, the layout of the room
means that the Council is unable to guarantee a seat/location that is not within the coverage
area (images and sound) of the webcasting equipment.
By entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are consenting to being
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or
training purposes.
Information about the Committee
The Committee is made up of your local elected Councillors. As one of five strategic committees
of the Council, it helps to set the overall direction of the Council.
Public participation during the meeting
Do you want to ask a question?
There is a Question Time of up to 30 minutes from 7.30pm – 8pm. Questions may be
submitted in writing before the meeting or handed in at the start of the meeting on the green
forms provided. (There are some green slips on the chairs and there are more copies.)
Please fill in the relevant part and hand this in to the Committee Officer at the top table.
Where a full reply cannot be given at the meeting, a written reply will be sent to the
questioner, members of the Committee and the local press. The Chair may disallow any
question which, in his/her opinion, is scurrilous, capricious, irrelevant or otherwise
objectionable.
Running order
Are you here for a particular item? Items may be taken in a different order depending on the
interests of the members of the public present at the meeting. Please fill out a green form at
the start of the meeting and hand this to the Committee Officer if you would like to request
that a particular item is heard earlier in the meeting.
Taking part in the meeting
During the course of the meeting, the Chair, at his/her discretion, may allow contributions, on
items listed on the agenda. To attract the Chair’s attention, please raise your hand.
Speaking at meetings
Speaking at a meeting can be a daunting prospect and every effort is made to make this as
easy as possible. Speech friendly arrangements will take account of people who may have a
speech impairment, e.g. they may have a stammer. If you have any individual requirements
or feel that standing or addressing the meeting may present a difficulty, please let us know
beforehand. Arrangements will be made to help you as far as reasonably possible.

4

More meeting information
Accessibility






All meetings have access for people who may have mobility difficulties. If there are stairs, a
lift or stairlift is available. Disabled parking spaces are available on site.
Toilet facilities will be easily accessible from the meeting room.
For people who are deaf or have hearing impairments, there is an induction loop (depending
on the building, this may only be available in the first 2 or 3 rows).

A large print copy of the agenda can be requested in advance.

Emergency evacuation arrangements
If the fire alarm sounds, please leave the building by the nearest exit. If you require assistance,
please remain seated and an Officer will assist you from the building.
Filming
Residents and journalists/media wishing to film meetings are permitted to do so but are asked to
give advance notice of this and respect any concerns expressed by people on being filmed.
Interests
Councillors must say if they have an interest in any of the items on the agenda. Interests may be
personal or pecuniary. Depending on the interests declared, it might be necessary for the
Councillor to leave the meeting. The detail on interests is in Part 5A of the Constitution Members’ Code of Conduct.
Call In
Most of the decisions made at the Committee, except on decisions on planning applications/
planning enforcement/tree preservation orders and any licensing applications, can be called in for
review by a minimum of 100 people who live, work or study in the Borough or 9 Councillors. A
Decision Notice will be published on the Council’s website soon after the meeting with details of
the decisions and the call in period expires 10 working days after the meeting. Decisions are not,
therefore, acted upon until it is clear that they are not going to be called in.
The call in means the decision will be reviewed by a meeting of the Council’s Scrutiny Panel. The
Panel at this meeting cannot change the original decision. It may decide that no further action is
necessary, in which case the decision will be implemented or will refer the issue back to the
decision making Committee (or, exceptionally, to a meeting of the Full Council) with its views and
a request that the decision is reconsidered taking account of these views.
Minutes
The minutes briefly summarise the item and record the decision. They do not record who said
what during the debate.

Community Engagement Committee

A1

Appendix A

26 March 2019
Customer Service Improvement Plan and Customer Access Strategy
Director, Communities

Purpose
To provide an update to the Community Engagement Committee on progress with
implementing the Customer Access Strategy.
Recommendation that work to improve the Council’s responsiveness to the community through the
implementation of the Customer Access Strategy be endorsed, including:
● improving the Council’s website www.kingston.gov.uk through co-design with
residents, businesses, partners, Members and colleagues.
● redesigning services end to end to ensure to improve responsiveness through all
channels including face to face, phone, website and through social media
including Contact Kingston.
● focusing on performance to ensure we deliver a consistent service to the
community we serve.
Benefits to the Community:
Improving outcomes for the community through enabling the Council to respond more
effectively to increased demand for services with reduced resources.

Key Points
1.

On September 19 2018 the Community Engagement Committee approved a joint
Customer Access Strategy between the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
and the London Borough of Sutton and subsequently approved a joint Digital
Strategy on 20 November 2018. The strategies set out the opportunities for us to
improve our responsiveness to the communities we serve through digital
transformation, increasing online self service and redesigning services to ensure we
manage expectations upfront and close the loop with a clear outcome. The
strategies do not set out a one size fits all approach and emphasise the importance
of retaining choice and flexibility in contacting the council and delivering a
consistent service through face to face, phone, website and social media channels.

2.

Working with communities to co-design services to meet needs will be essential for
us to respond to the challenges of increased demand with reduced resources
ensuring we are financially sustainable. Following adoption of the Customer
Access Strategy work to bring about this change through a number of key projects
and workstreams:

Culture and Behaviours:
3.

Our new Customer Access Strategy and Digital Strategy set out our approach to
developing the enabling culture and behaviours to deliver effective digital

A2
transformation. During 2019 work is underway to engage communities, councillors
and colleagues in the implementation of the strategies.

4.

Both strategies align with the delivery of the draft corporate plan priorities and our
ambition to ensure that we are a sustainable, responsible and engaging council that
works in the best interests of Kingston’s residents and businesses.

5.

We are developing our approach to learning from complaints and feedback through
providing training to colleagues on restorative practice and focusing on early
resolution of concerns. New corporate and social care complaints procedures were
adopted in December 2018 and the council has received positive feedback from the
Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman regarding the proactive approach
taken to responding to concerns raised in the previous year.

Website Redesign:
6.

A project is underway to redesign www.kingston.gov.uk to improve the quality of our
online information and make it easy for residents to find what they are looking for.
Funding is in place to deliver this project by December 2019 and it will include:
● Engagement with communities, councillors and colleagues
● Google analytics analysis and search optimisation to promote frequently
accessed content
● Accessibility enhancements to comply with new directives
● Empower colleagues to own shop window and see the benefits of digital self
service
● Redesign of home page and category pages to improve the customer
journey
● Build in flexible templates that meet the needs of an evolving LA looking to
embrace commercialism
● Social media referrals to increase promotion of relevant content

7.

Engagement events are scheduled during Q1 2018/19 to co-design our new
website with volunteers. These events will take place across the borough and are
open to all. The team are also keen to attend other groups in the community such
as residents associations who are happy to work with us on the codesign. Further
information can be found on our website (link).

Digital Inclusion:
8.

A digital inclusion project is currently underway, working with our partners including
the community sector to map current digital inclusion activity and support across the
borough and develop a plan to build relationships and strengthen community
engagement, enhance and promote digital inclusion and improve outcomes and
access for residents. Partners involved in the project include Superhighways,
Cambridge Road Estate Residents Association, One Norbiton and volunteer
residents. The project is on track and due to complete in November 2019.

Digital Platform:
9.

Currently we have complex systems in place which are costly to maintain and
develop and impact on customer journey and experience.

A3
During 2018 following research to identify the gaps in our current provision, the
councils carried out an extensive commissioning exercise to select a new digital
platform and awarded a contract to Firmstep on 30 January 2019.

10.

11.

The objectives of the digital platform project are to:
● Enable customers to report, pay, book and apply online and have a
consistent experience across all services.
● Enable us to effectively support customers in person or over the phone.
● Reduce costs and increase efficiency

12.

Phase 1 of the digital platform is due to be delivered in Q1 2019/20, which will give
us the basic platform infrastructure. Then we will have the ability to be able to
report issues and take payments with plans in place to move digital services to the
new platform over the next 12-24 months.

Service Redesign:
13.

Redesigning services to take a ‘digital first’ approach and focus on delivering
improved outcomes at reduced costs, developing clarity on quality and timescales
to manage expectations effectively.

14.

Following work to prioritise areas for review services with the greatest financial and
service improvement opportunities were identified. Redesign work is currently
focused on Adult Social Care and opportunities to support independence. All
service areas will be programmed for review over the next 12-24 months.

Councillor Casework:
15.

A project is underway to improve our responsiveness to councillor casework
through:
● Providing clear guidance to councillors on reporting arrangements and
timescales for responses
● Identifying opportunities to proactively provide information to councillors and
reduce the volume of enquiries received
● Identifying areas of opportunity to support colleagues with improving speed
and quality of response to councillor and reviewing resources in place to
respond to enquiries across the organisation
● pilot a casework management system to provide councillors with a digital
solution to manage their casework the system is on track to launch in
February 2019 and will be evaluated in September 2019.

Background papers:
-

Customer Access Strategy
Digital Strategy

held by author of report - Rebecca Peck, Head of Customer Experience, email
rebecca.peck@kingston.gov.uk
.

Community Engagement Committee

B1

Appendix B

26 March 2019
Statement of Community Involvement
Report by Assistant Director of Strategic Planning and Infrastructure

Purpose
To authorise consultation on the revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
which explains how the Council will involve residents and other interested parties in
producing planning policy and guidance documents and determining planning
applications.
Recommendation that 1. Authority be granted for a public consultation for a period of four weeks on the
revised draft Statement of Community Involvement at Annex 1.
2. prior to consultation, the Assistant Director of Strategic Planning and
Infrastructure, in consultation with the Portfolio Holders for Resident
Engagement, Planning Policy & Culture and Heritage and the Chair of the
Development Control Committee and the relevant Opposition spokespeople, be
given delegated authority to make minor amendments to the revised Statement
of Community Involvement.
Benefits to the Community:
The Statement of Community Involvement will explain how the council will engage with
the community when producing the Local Plan and determining planning applications.

Key Points
A.

This report seeks authorisation to publicly consult on the revised Statement of
Community Involvement (SCI).

B.

The revised SCI updates the Council’s existing SCI, which was adopted in January
2007 as well as the previous draft version which was consulted upon in 2016.

C.

The SCI sets out how the Council will involve residents and other interested parties
in planning matters, including planning applications and the development of
planning policy and guidance.

D.

The document sets out how the Council will meet the statutory requirements for
community engagement. It provides a flexible and lasting framework for delivering
high quality engagement in the borough.

E.

It is proposed that the Council will consult on the revised SCI in advance of
undertaking public consultation on the Early Engagement for the new Local Plan.

Context

B2

1.

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires local planning
authorities to produce a SCI. The document sets out how the council will engage
the local community and other interested parties in the formulation of the Local Plan
and determination of planning applications. Once adopted, the SCI will be made
available on the council’s website.

2.

The current SCI was published by the council in January 2007. An updated SCI was
presented at Growth Committee in June 2016, where authority was granted for
public consultation on the draft document. The public consultation was undertaken
during the summer of 2016, which resulted in a number of changes; these are
outlined below in paragraphs 7 to 18.

3.

The 2007 SCI required a series of updates to reflect the most up to date planning
legislation; for example, it predates Regulation 18 of the Town and Country
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012, which sets out specific
bodies or persons that the local planning authority must notify and invite
representations from in developing its Local Plan. The existing SCI also pre-dates
the Localism Act 2011, which introduced the duty to co-operate with other
authorities and organisations on statutory cross-boundary issues, as well as the
2018 and 2019 National Planning Policy Framework, which introduced the
Statement of Common Ground, which is now a statutory element of local plan
production.

4.

As a result of the 2016 version of the SCI, officers were keen not to rush the
document back to committee, given there was a large amount of consultation that
summer, and the need to consider consultation responses more fully. Since then,
the council has undergone local elections which paused progress for sometime.

5.

In light of the new administration, officers have been cognisant of the Liberal
Democrat manifesto which places emphasis on meaningful engagement, therefore
have taken time to redraft the SCI, alongside the Planning Charter.

6.

The Committee is asked to approve the further revisions to the draft SCI for public
consultation after which the final draft document will be submitted to the Strategic
Housing and Planning Committee for adoption.

Revisions to the draft SCI of 2016
7.

The structure of the document, including headings, is unchanged.

8.

Minor changes have been made to Section 3 to reflect national policy on
engagement in plan making set out in the National Planning Policy Framework 2019
and includes details of the government’s Neighbourhood Planning website.

9.

Minor changes have been made to both Section 5 and Section 7 for consultees who
would like feedback, to ensure the document complies with GDPR requirements.

10.

Elements of Section 6 which explain how the council will seek to ensure it considers
views which are representative of the community as a whole have been made more
concise.

11.

B3
Section 7 has been amended to explain barriers which may exist for some people
which discourage their participation. The document now includes a commitment to
use a range of communication methods to overcome barriers to engagement and
hold events at a range of times to facilitate wider engagement.

12.

Section 8 of the document addresses how residents and other stakeholders will
engage with the Local Plan process. The key changes are:
● Stage 2 consultation on the Local Plan has changed so that the process can
be split into two parts for any significant policy changes. This would facilitate
development of a first draft with consultation before finalising the publication
draft. The results of consultation on the first draft would form part of the
supporting documents for the publication draft.
● Stage 2 consultation has also been updated to incorporate the tests of
soundness required by the National Planning Policy Statement together with
‘general conformity’ requirements of the London Plan.
● Representations made in respect of the publication draft will be
acknowledged and published on the council’s website and made available at
council premises.
● Stage 3 makes clear that some personal information (not addresses or
contact details) will be shared with the Secretary of State and made public
when reporting on representations associated with the submission draft of
the Local Plan.

13.

Section 8 also addresses the process for consulting on Supplementary Planning
Documents (SPDs), however this remains is largely unchanged. Production of the
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) charging schedule has been expanded to
include consultation on changes to the Regulation 123 list.

14.

Section 9 of the document has been updated to reflect the latest guidance in
relation to planning applications. A key change in this section includes the
introduction of a Planning Charter (Annex 2), which removes a lot of the detail about
the planning application process from the SCI, and places it in this new Charter
(such as Table 1: Publicity on Planning Applications). The Planning Charter
provides guidance on the means the council will normally encourage developers to
utilise to involve the local community before they submit their application.

15.

By introducing a Planning Charter, the council will be able to update this document
to reflect the latest advice and guidance without having to update the SCI as well.
This flexibility is seen as important as it will accommodate the integration of new
tools and ways of engaging with people. For example, the recently introduced public
portal on the council’s website that allows residents to take more personal control
on how they find out about proposals they are interested in.

16.

Section 9 now makes clear that all applications and their supporting information are
made available online for the public to view. There are times when the information
submitted needs to be held as confidential and not published, however the council
will seek to maximise transparency wherever possible.

17.

Section 9 also now introduces a paragraph on how comments to planning
applications are considered, noting that full consideration is given to all comments
and due weight is attached to the views of the community.

18.

B4
Appendix 2 has been deleted and referenced within the document under Section 6
Statutory consultees.

Consultations
19.

A draft SCI was approved by Growth Committee for public consultation at its
meeting on 9 June 2016. Public consultation on the draft was undertaken over four
weeks between 13 June 2016 and 10 July 2016. The outcome of the consultation
has been considered and the changes referred to above have been made in
response to feedback received.

20.

The revised draft SCI in Annex 1 has been prepared in conjunction with colleagues
in Strategic Planning, Communications and Engagement and Equalities.

21.

The council has a statutory duty to undertake a formal public consultation on the
SCI and it is proposed that four weeks be allowed for the consultation (this can be
extended if the consultation falls over school holiday periods). The council will
consult with specific bodies as set out in the planning regulations, general
consultees and persons and organisations registered on the Local Plan consultee
database. Additionally, the consultation will be advertised in local libraries, at the
council offices and on the council website. As part of public consultation, the council
will attend all neighbourhood committees to ensure the community have a chance to
engage on the document.

Timescale
22.

The draft SCI is being brought to this committee for authority to proceed with formal
public consultation. The public consultation will last four weeks (or an extended
period if the consultation falls over school holiday periods) and is earmarked to take
place during April and May 2019. After that, feedback from the consultation will be
considered and a final draft SCI prepared in the summer of 2019.

23.

The final draft SCI will be taken to Strategic Housing and Planning Committee in
September 2019 for adoption as the document is a statutory planning document.
The final draft will address all responses received during public consultation, and a
summary of key changes will be presented at committee. It is anticipated the
published SCI will be made available on the council website after the expiry of
community call in deadline.

Resource Implications
24.

The production of the revised SCI has been completed in-house by the Strategic
Planning team. The costs of public consultation will be covered within the existing
budget of the Strategic Planning team.

Legal Implications
25.

It is a statutory requirement that the Council prepares a SCI. It is also a statutory
requirement that Councils engage stakeholders in relation to planning applications
and when preparing new planning policy and guidance. The document sets out how
the Council will meet the statutory requirements for community engagement.

Risk Assessment
26.

B5

The SCI of 2007 required updating because it pre-dates, for example, Regulation 18
of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012,
which sets out specific bodies or persons that the local planning authority must
notify and invite representations from in developing its Local Plan. It also pre-dates
the Localism Act 2011 which includes a duty to co-operate with other authorities on
strategic cross-boundary issues.

Equalities Impact Assessment
27.

Equality issues have been taken into account in the SCI and work towards
eliminating discrimination. The SCI sets out the key equalities issues and the
proposed strategies to ensure we engage effectively with protected characteristic
groups.

Health Implications
28.

This document sets out how the borough plan to engage communities with regards
to planning decisions and plan-making, both of which seek to improve the health
and wellbeing of our borough population.

Road Network Implications
29.

The SCI does not propose any impacts to the road network in the borough.

Environmental & Air Quality Implications
30.

The SCI does not propose any impacts to the environment or give rise to any air
quality implications in the borough.

Annexes
● Annex 1: Draft Statement of Community Involvement for Public Consultation
● Annex 2: Planning Charter
Background papers
● Kingston’s Core Strategy (2012) Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames
● Town and Country Planning Act 1990
● Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
Held by author/other - Lisa Fairmaner
Author of report - Lisa Fairmaner, Corporate Head of Planning, 020 8547 4706

B6

ANNEX 1

Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Local Plan
Consultation Draft Statement of Community Involvement
How we will involve you in planning matters
March 2019

B7

Statement of Community Involvement

Contents
What is planning?

2

What is the Statement of Community Involvement?

2

Why is community involvement important?

2

What do we do with your comments?

3

How do you find out what difference your comments have made?

3

Who do we consult?

4

What principles guide community engagement?

5

How can you be involved in planning policy?

6

How can you be involved in planning applications?

19

How well are we doing?

23

Appendix 1: Consultation groups involved in planning policy production

24

1

B8

Statement of Community Involvement

1.

What is planning?

1.1

Planning affects everyone. It shapes how places look and work. Planning addresses the
need for new homes, facilities and infrastructure whilst protecting the countryside, heritage,
open spaces and wildlife habitats.

1.2

Local councils play an important part in the planning process. They must prepare what is
called a 'Local Plan' for their area containing policies and proposals to guide future
development. When preparing Local Plans, councils should consider local issues, but they
must be consistent with national and in ‘general conformity’ with regional planning policies in
the Mayor’s London Plan.

1.3

Councils also decide whether to permit or refuse planning applications. When someone
applies for permission for a new development or to change the use of land or buildings, the
Local Plan will be used to judge the merits of the proposal. Planning policies provide some
certainty for all concerned over what may or may not be permitted. Proposals are often small
scale, like an extension to a house, but they may be large, for example, a new shopping
centre or large housing development. The Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames receives
around 3,000 planning applications each year.

2.

What is the Statement of Community Involvement?

2.1

Councils are legally required to involve communities in the planning process. They are also
1
required to produce a Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) showing how the council
2
will meet, and in appropriate cases go beyond, the minimum statutory requirements for
engagement.

2.2

This is Kingston Council’s Statement of Community Involvement. It sets out the council’s
approach to community involvement in the planning process. It explains our standards for
3
engaging residents, local groups, stakeholders and statutory consultees in preparing the
council's planning policies, and in the process of deciding planning applications.

2.3

The Localism Act 2011 sets out a ‘duty to co-operate’. It is a requirement that the council
engages with neighbouring local authorities and other statutory bodies (like the Mayor of
London and wider Greater London Authority including Transport for London) to consider joint
approaches to plan-making. We are committed to meeting this duty and are working closely
with neighbouring authorities, other partner organisations and stakeholders.

3.

Why is community involvement important?

3.1

Planning plays a key part in shaping our environment. It is important that those affected
have an opportunity to be heard and have their views considered.

3.2

The Government is committed to increasing the ability of local communities to influence

1
2
3

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
Set out in the T
 own and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012
Listed in the Government’s online National Planning Policy Guidance

2

B9

Statement of Community Involvement

planning decisions and future development in their areas. The National Planning Policy
Framework (2019) sets out the Government’s commitment to involve all interested parties
in planning:
“Plans should ... be shaped by early, proportionate and effective engagement
between planmakers and communities, local organisations, businesses, infrastructure
providers and operators and statutory consultees”
“Early engagement has significant potential to improve the efficiency and
effectiveness of the planning application system for all parties. Good quality
pre-application discussion enables better coordination between public and private
resources and improved outcomes for the community.”4
3.3

There are two key areas where the council involves the community in planning: creating
producing planning policies and documents and deciding planning applications. This
document explains how we will plan to engage with the community on these matters and
how comments can be submitted.

3.4

The Government has also introduced the option for a Neighbourhood Forum (or Parish
5
Council) to prepare a Neighbourhood Plan . These plans can be developed to deliver
sustainable development within the relevant neighbourhood. They cannot promote less
development than is set out in the council’s Local Plan, but they can promote more. Also, ,
unlike council prepared plans, a Neighbourhood Plan must undergo a local referendum
prior to being adopted.

3.5

Neighbourhood forums are able to decide on how they involve and consult residents,
businesses and stakeholders in creating a neighbourhood plan. As local communities are
responsible for the development of these plans, it is up to them to decide how they involve
people and undertake any consultation. However, the council does have some statutory
functions regarding the development of Neighbourhood Plans, which are set out in the
Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 (as amended). People should
contact (and in many cases will be able to join) a Neighbourhood Forum to be involved in
the development of Neighbourhood Plans.

3.6

More information on creating neighbourhood plans is available on the council’s website, as
well as on the Government’s neighbourhood planning website:
www.neighbourhoodplanning.org.

4.

What do we do with your comments?

4.1

We consider every comment sent in to us and shape plans where possible. It is often the
case that different groups want the council to take different positions on planning matters.
The council also makes decisions in the context of national, regional and local planning
policies.

5.

How do you find out what difference your comments have made?

5.1

If your comments relate to a planning policy document, we will prepare a consultation

4

5

National Planning Policy Framework (2019) paragraphs 16 and 39
Localism Act, 2011, Chapter 3 p113

3

B10

Statement of Community Involvement

statement which sets out the key issues that have been raised during the consultation, the
council’s response and whether changes have been made to the document as a result.
The consultation statement will be placed on the council’s website and where appropriate,
feedback will be given electronically or in meetings.
5.2

If you want feedback, it is important that you give the council your consent to the relevant
planning team to get in touch with you in the future. If you do not, the council cannot
contact you to update you on future events, updates or decisions.

5.3

We are unable to respond individually to all questions and comments made on planning
applications. However, all the comments that are submitted on a planning application are
taken into account by the planning officer in their assessment of the proposals.
Comments, questions and statements of support are summarised and commented on
within the planning officer’s report. Once a decision is made, this report stays publically
available on the council’s website so that you can see how your comments were taken
into account and addressed.

6.

Who do we consult?

6.1

The amount of consultation should be in proportion with the likely impact of the plan or
planning application. For example, a straight-forward local plan review to bring an existing
local plan in line with changes to national policy would need significantly less consultation
and engagement than a new local plan. A planning application for an extension on a home
would require less consultation and engagement than a large development with hundreds of
new homes. This document needs to be applied in every case.

The local community
6.2

It is important to understand our local community in order to ensure that we engage and
consult in the most effective way, and that the views received are representative of the
community as a whole and do not only represent the views of a smaller demographic.
When reviewing the responses to consultations, we will examine how they reflect the
demographic breakdown of the borough’s local population. This will allow us to identify
under-represented groups and, where appropriate, improve our methods of engaging with
them, or target them directly to ensure we understand our diverse community

6.3

The borough has many small and medium sized businesses, together with a number of
larger companies who all make a significant contribution to the borough and also rely on
sound planning policies and planning decisions. In addition, a significant proportion of the
population that work in the borough commute from other areas, which means that
Kingston has a sizeable worker population who are affected by how the borough changes
and develops.

6.4

There is also a strong voluntary and community sector that provides a number of valued
services across the borough. These organisations are important in delivering services to
local people and, as such, are a key consultee on planning issues.

6.5

Utilities companies, and other service providers, like the National Health Service and the
Environment Agency, are consulted on planning policy and planning applications, where
appropriate.
4

B11

Statement of Community Involvement

Statutory consultees
6.6

There are certain organisations that the council has a statutory duty to consult. When
developing larger documents like a Local Plan or Supplementary Planning Document,
6
regulations state the types of groups that must be included in consultation processes .
They are grouped into ‘specific’ and ‘general’ consultation bodies (See Appendix 1).
Specific bodies are those organisations the council is required to consult on all planning
policy. General bodies include voluntary groups and businesses for example who may
be interested to find out how proposed policies may affect them. Unlike specific bodies,
there isn’t a definitive list of general bodies that the council must consult.

6.7

In addition, the council works closely with neighbouring boroughs and districts on
strategic priorities and areas of common interest. These partnerships help us to meet the
Duty to Cooperate, established by the Localism Act 2011. We need to prepare
statements of common ground which show how we are working with our neighbours and
that the plans are deliverable7.

6.8

There are also statutory consultees that need to be consulted on planning applications
before the determination of a planning application. Consultation depends on the
application type and location of the proposed development. Full details of who should be
consulted are set out in regulations8.

7.

What principles guide community engagement?

7.1

The principles which guide community involvement in planning policy and guidance and
planning applications have been adapted from the council’s key principles of community
engagement and are as follows:
Clear purpose
● Engagement should explain the role of planning and how people can help shape plans
Early engagement
● Making the most of opportunities for engagement at an early stage to ensure that policies
and proposals can be shaped with communities
Manage expectations
● The council will be clear about what we will do and what we will not do
Appropriate engagement
● Engagement should be relevant and focus on issues that matter to particular groups
● The degree of community involvement should reflect the nature and scale of the document
or planning application concerned
● Avoid excessive consultation by coordinating engagement on planning policy documents

6
7

Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012

National Planning Policy Framework (2019) para 24-27 and National Planning Practice Guidance (Plan Making)
Part 4 and Schedule 4 of the The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order
2015
8

5

B12

Statement of Community Involvement

with other council consultation exercises wherever possible
● Ensure updates are posted across council communications channels
Inclusive engagement
● The council will ensure that views expressed by the community are representative
● Consultation should be inclusive.
Accessible engagement
● Opportunities for community involvement should be publicised widely
● Documents should be clear, easily available and accessible.
● Recognise the importance of the internet in improving accessibility to information but
also its limitations for consulting with some groups
Provide feedback
● The outcome of consultation should be reported back to the community where they
have given consent to be contacted, particularly to those that contributed
● Feedback should explain how comments made were taken into account
7.2

Consultation events will be arranged with advance notice and held in accessible venues and,
where appropriate, at a range of times.

7.3

All published documents on planning issues will include a strapline explaining how people
with disabilities and people for whom English is not their language can get help accessing the
information.

8.

How can you be involved in planning policy?

8.1

We have a 'plan-led system' in the UK which means that land owners, developers,
infrastructure providers, the public and other interested parties have some degree of
certainty over what can be built and where.

8.2

Planning applications are judged against policies and proposals in the area’s
development plan. Planning law requires that applications must be determined in
accordance with the Development Plan unless material considerations9 indicate
10
otherwise . The borough’s statutory development plan is made up of the Mayor’s London
Plan, the ‘Local Plan’ for Kingston (which can be made up of more than one document)
and any neighbourhood plans for specific areas11. The current system of producing local
plans is set out by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended), and
regulations made under it. The government also produces guidance which sets out the
expectations about plan-making and local plans, and brings together the requirements of
the legislation and regulations12.

8.3

The council’s programme for producing planning policy documents is set out in the Local
Development Scheme. This is available from the council's strategic planning team and on

9

A material consideration is a matter that should be taken into account in deciding a planning application or on an appeal
against a planning decision.
10
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
11
www.kingston.gov.uk/info/200157/planning_strategies_and_policies/285/development_plan_documents
12
The government’s guidance can be found at https://www.gov.uk/guidance/local-plans. These are ‘living’ documents
and are changed from time to time so are always up to date.

6

B13

Statement of Community Involvement

the council's website. The Local Development Scheme (LDS) lists the documents to be
produced, timescales for their preparation, and sets out when consultation periods are
expected to take place.
8.4

Each year the council publishes an Authority Monitoring Report which looks at the
progress made against the work programme set out in the Local Development Scheme,
and monitors the effectiveness of the council’s policies and proposals. The report can
highlight that the Local Development Scheme programme needs to be reviewed or where
policies aren’t delivering the expected outcomes.

8.5

There are two main types of document that set out and explain planning policy. Each has
different statutory arrangements which dictate what weight they carry, what they can
cover and how they are prepared.
Local plans: This sets out policies that will be used to manage development within the
borough and includes a policies map which shows the areas some policies apply to (like
conservation areas) and where site-specific proposals apply (allocations, for example key
development sites). They have statutory weight in the determination of planning
applications. They are consulted on and examined by a Planning Inspector through a
public examination.
When used in this document, the term ‘local plan’ is used to refer to any development
plan document. This may include the document entitled Local Plan, which we are
currently developing. It also refers to any other development plan document such as the
South London Waste Plan. This term also covers a revision to a plan, which could be a
relatively minor, single issue change.
Supplementary Planning Documents: These provide additional guidance on policies in
the Local Plan (or sometimes the London Plan). Typically they focus on a specific site,
area or topic. They cannot introduce new policy, and do not have statutory weight in the
determination of planning applications. However, they can be taken into account when
planning applications are decided as ‘material considerations’. Although they are
consulted on, they are not examined by a Planning Inspector.
From time to time, it may be necessary for the council to write a development brief or
area plans which follows the processes and procedures of a Supplementary Planning
Document, but could have a different status in planning terms. This will be clearly
explained in the consultation. The Statement of Community Involvement would not apply
to these documents, although the council may choose to use the same consultation
methods and approaches.

8.6

In addition to Local Plans and Supplementary Planning Documents, you can also
comment on any revisions to the council’s:
●
●

8.7

Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule; and
Statement of Community Involvement

The council must consult residents, businesses and other stakeholders on these
documents. The following sections outline the stages at which you can have your say.

7

B14

Statement of Community Involvement

Preparing or Reviewing Local Plans and Supplementary Planning
Documents
8.8

All planning policy documents are required to be based on evidence. The evidence used
in preparing a plan includes evidence such as census, London-wide or borough data,
topic-specific studies, and non-planning strategies and plans. Evidence also includes
feedback from consultation, surveys and workshops and discussions with the
development industry to make sure proposals are deliverable13.

8.9

In addition, the council needs to ensure that policies are consistent with national policy
set out in the National Planning Policy Framework and in ‘general conformity with the
Mayor’s London Plan. The London Plan includes a specific housing target for the
borough, as well as other designations. The council must balance the need to ensure that
its policies not only reflect local opinion, as far as possible, but that they are justified by
the empirical economic, social and environmental evidence whilst supporting the broad
national aims of the Government and in general conformity with the London Plan.

8.10 A sustainability appraisal takes place alongside preparing the Local Plan to ensure that
the social, economic and environmental effects of different options are fully considered in
the plan-making process. In carrying out sustainability appraisals, the council will:
●
●
●

consult key stakeholders, including the Environment Agency, Natural England and
Historic England on the scope of the appraisal
consult key stakeholders and the public as part of public participation in the
preparation of a Local Plan document
carry out public consultation on the final sustainability appraisal which supports
the proposed submission Local Plan

Sustainability appraisals are not required for supplementary planning documents.
8.11 The sustainability appraisal might be bought together into one single document with an
equalities impact assessment and a health impact assessment., which is called an
integrated impact assessment. The reason these three might be bought together is
because there are often shared objectives from all three assessments. For example, poor
air quality is a relevant consideration for a sustainability appraisal (because it has
environmental, social and economic impacts), it also disproportionately affects some
groups and has health impacts.

13

National Planning Policy Framework (2019) paragraph 74

8

B15

Statement of Community Involvement

Figure 1: Process diagram for the Preparation of Local Plan Planning Documents

Figure 2: Process diagram for the Preparation of Supplementary Planning Document

9

B16

Statement of Community Involvement

Local Plans
Stage 1: Preparation and early engagement
What this stage involves
8.12 This is an early stage of plan preparation when the council is gathering evidence, considering
the relevant issues and looking at the context for new policies and proposals. This is where
the process of engaging with residents, businesses, service providers, utilities and all other
stakeholders will begin.
8.13 At the preparation stage the planning regulations require statutory consultation, but the
requirements are very limited14. This is the most important stage as the plans are at their
most flexible and discussions are taking place on what policies are needed and how this can
be achieved.
8.14 In addition, the council will consult 'specific' and 'general' consultation bodies that it thinks will
be affected by the document in question. These are the national and local bodies that are
potentially interested in, or affected by, the document in question. Appendix 1 provides more
information on specific and general consultees.
How you can be involved
8.15 This is one of the best times to be involved in the plan-making process. Your comments and
views form part of the evidence base that the council uses to set the policy direction of the
proposed plan. It is also the time to put forward ideas you may have so these options can be
considered in detail, including by sustainability appraisal.
8.16 The way we engage with people will depend on the type of document, the target audience
and the council’s resources. For example, making a small change might require less or
different consultation than the development of a new local plan. The council will seek to use
the most effective approach both in terms of cost and outcome of a consultation
8.17 To meet its statutory requirements15, the council will:
● notify all relevant specific and general consultees, all those on its Local Plans consultation
database and anyone else the council considers relevant that:
○ that the council intends to produce (or revise) its local plan or other Development
Plan Document;
○ the subject of that plan; and
○ invite them to make representations about what a local plan with that subject ought
to contain.
8.18 The following list sets out some of the methods of engagement that we will consider using.
It is not exhaustive; nor does it represent a list of activities that will be used in every
instance. All engagement activities being undertaken will be published on the council’s
website. The council may also:
●

14
15

consider publishing an early engagement document to gain wider community
involvement. If so, then as a minimum this would be available online, in the council’s

Regulation 18 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) Regulations 2012 (as amended)
Regulation 18 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) Regulations 2012 (as amended)

10

B17

●
●
●
●
●
●

Statement of Community Involvement

offices (Guildhall 2) and in local libraries, if requested
consider how best to engage through the council’s consultation portal
issue a press release to the local newspapers, Talking Newspaper and local radio
invite views from all individuals, businesses or organisations on the Local Plans
consultation database
meet with representatives of community groups, using existing forums where possible
including neighbourhood committees
consider holding public events, such as exhibitions or workshops,
consider the use of social media to promote consultations

8.19 If any consultation or early engagement exercise falls within the timeframe of another council
consultation event or period then it may appropriate in certain cases to combine these with
other such exercises.

Stage 2: Consultation on the draft document(s) including the Publication
Draft
What this stage involves
8.20 At this stage all the evidence collected from the preparation and early engagement stage,
including the results of early engagement, are considered and a draft document is
published for consultation. By this point the council will have a view on what realistic
options there are for policies and proposals. A Sustainability Appraisal will also be
published at this stage, assessing the social, economic and environmental effects of the
options.
8.21 For significant policy changes, this stage may be split into two parts: an informal
consultation draft, referred to as the First Draft followed by consultation on the formal,
16
statutory draft referred to as the Publication Draft . Only very minor changes can be
made to a Publication Draft, and for that reason the council will usually consult on an
informal draft so responses can be taken into account by making more significant
changes. However, there may be instances where there is a relatively small plan
revisions (for example, to take into account changes to national or regional tier policy)
where a separate first draft may not be necessary.
How you can be involved
8.22 Where a First Draft is produced, this is an important stage allowing you to comment on
whether you consider this to be the correct way forward and gives you the opportunity to
raise any concerns regarding the policy or guidance set out in the document and set out
any alternative wording.
8.23 The Publication Draft consultation is is a crucial stage for any person who believes the
plan is ‘unsound’ because only those who participate at this stage are involved in the
public examination. As it is a formal statutory stage, representations can only relate to
whether the plan has been prepared in accordance with the duty to cooperate17, the
relevant legal and procedural requirements18, and whether it is considered to be ‘sound’.
As such, your representation at this stage should only make reference to these matters.
16

Statutory requirements set out in Regulation 19, 35 and 36 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning)
(England) Regulations 2012 (as amended)
17
 ational Planning Policy Framework (2019) para 24-27
N
18

A checklist is provided at www.local.gov.uk/pas/pas-topics/local-plans/local-plan-checklist

11

B18

Statement of Community Involvement

Any representations will be considered by an independent inspector at an 'examination'.
Those seeking changes to the document will have to show why the plan is unsound.
8.24 The National Planning Policy Framework (2019) sets out the following tests of soundness:
a)

Positively prepared – providing a strategy which, as a minimum, seeks to meet the
area’s objectively assessed needs; and is informed by agreements with other
authorities, so that unmet need from neighbouring areas is accommodated where it is
practical to do so and is consistent with achieving sustainable development;

b)

Justified – an appropriate strategy, taking into account the reasonable alternatives,
and based on proportionate evidence;

c)

Effective – deliverable over the plan period, and based on effective joint working on
cross-boundary strategic matters that have been dealt with rather than deferred, as
evidenced by the statement of common ground; and

d)

Consistent with national policy – enabling the delivery of sustainable development
in accordance with the policies in this Framework.

8.25 In London, there is an additional requirement for the plan to be in ‘general conformity’
with the Mayor’s London Plan19. The council will request the opinion in writing of the
Mayor of London as to the general conformity of a development plan document with the
spatial development strategy.
For a First Draft or a Publication Draft:
8.26 Any consultation on draft documents will be no shorter than six weeks. The consultation
methods used will be advertised on the council’s web site and will accord with the Core
Principles set out in section 7. Where there is a separate informal draft, the council will
use a range of consultation methods, and as a minimum will notify all those on the Local
Plans consultation database and specific and general consultation bodies, and all those
who responded to the early engagement who have given consent to be contacted
For the Publication Draft, to meet its statutory requirements, the council will, and for a
First Draft the council may:
●
●
●
●

●
●

send all relevant specific, and general consultation bodies consulted at Stage 1 a
copy of the draft document and accompanying Sustainability Appraisal
make the draft document and Sustainability Appraisal available for inspection at
Guildhall 2 and all local libraries if requested
publish the draft document and Sustainability Appraisal on the council's website
make the document, Sustainability Appraisal and pre-submission consultation
statement available for inspection at all those places where documents were made
available at stage 2 (Guildhall 2 and local libraries if requested);
publish the document, Sustainability Appraisal and pre-submission consultation
statement on the council's website;
20
make a request of the Mayor of London as to the general conformity of the
document with the London Plan.

19

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) Section 24
General conformity is a term meaning the document is consistent with the objectives of the London Plan, and would
not harm the implementation of the London Plan policies
20

12

B19

Statement of Community Involvement

In addition, the council will consider further possible steps, where relevant, such as:
●

●
●

●
●
●

●
●
●

contact any other organisation or individuals that the council considers should be
involved in the consideration of the draft document. This will include occupants of
properties that the council considers to be directly affected by a policy or proposal
issue a press release to local newspapers
publish a statement setting out which organisations and individuals were consulted at
stage 1, how they were consulted, a summary of the main issues raised, and how
those issues have been addressed in the draft plan
use existing forums and focus groups
publicise on electronic display screens in the council's reception areas;
notices on public notice boards and at venues such as Kingston College, Kingston
University, schools and places of worship, community halls and suitable public
places;
hold public exhibitions, consultation meetings including Neighbourhood Committees
and/or interactive workshops;
notify by letter, leaflet or site notice those considered likely to be affected by a
significant proposal, for example a site allocation
face to face meetings with key stakeholders or objectors

8.27 For the First Draft, the council will take into account any representations received before the
deadline and consider and where necessary make appropriate changes before producing the
Publication Draft. The council may also produce additional informal drafts as required before
preparing the Publication Draft that it believes is ‘sound’ and intends to submit to the
Secretary of State.
8.28 Following consideration of the comments made on the Publication Draft, the council will
consider making minor changes in the light of comments received prior to submission. If we
decide we want to make more significant changes in the light of your comments, we will
re-publish and re-consult.
8.29 A summary of the main issues raised in the representations to any First Draft and how the
council has addressed these matters will be included in the consultation statement forming
part of the supporting documents for the Publication and Submission Drafts.
8.30 Any representations made in relation to the Publication Draft will be acknowledged,
published on the council's website and made available at local libraries and in Guildhall 2,
and sent to the Secretary of State for consideration at the examination.

Stage 3: Submission to Secretary of State and examination
Submission to the Secretary of State
What this stage involves
8.31 By this stage the council has considered the responses to involvement at stages 1 and 2 and
has prepared a complete document for submission to the Secretary of State, which in its view
should be the final version. It is the document the council wants to be considered at the
independent examination. It may be the same as the Publication Draft, or may include
additional modifications to deal with minor matters21. The council submits this Submission
21

The statutory requirements are set out in Regulation 22, 23, and 24 of the Town and Country Planning (Local

13

B20

Statement of Community Involvement

Draft to the Secretary of State together with the supporting documents22, copies of the
consultation responses to the Publication Draft and the evidence base documents supporting
the plan.
8.32 An independent Inspector will be appointed by the Planning Inspectorate to examine the
document for 'soundness'. The examination starts when the Local Plan is submitted and
finishes when the inspector issues their report to the council.
How you can be involved
8.33 If you have made a submission to the statutory Publication Draft, your submission will be
provided in full to the Secretary of State and made publicly available. This will include your
name but not identifying details such as address, email contact or telephone numbers. A
summary of the key issues raised at earlier consultation stages will be summarised in the
supporting documents submitted to the Secretary of State.
To meet its statutory requirements, the council will:
●

publicise details of the hearing sessions at least 6 weeks before they are scheduled to
take place;
contact those people who requested to be notified of the submission of the document to
the Secretary of State;
make the Submission Draft, and statutory supporting documents available for
inspection at all those places where documents were made available at stage 2;
make any other relevant documents (the examination library) available for inspection at
the council’s offices (Guildhall 2) by arrangement and at the examination hearings;
publish the Submission Draft, the supporting documents, and any other relevant
documents on the council's website;

●
●
●
●

In addition, the council will consider further possible steps, where relevant, such as:
●

●

●
●

Advise all those individuals, businesses or organisations on the Local Plan consultee
database not classified as 'specific' or 'general' consultees (except where they have
requested not to be contacted) of the Submission Draft and details of how documents
can be viewed;
contact any other organisations or individuals that have been involved in previous
stages of consultation, including occupants of properties contacted at any earlier
stage which the council consider to be directly affected by a site allocation;
issue a press release for the local newspapers, Talking Newspaper and local radio.
advertising in local newspapers, Talking Newspaper and local radio.

Examination
What this stage involves
8.34 An 'examination’ will be held by an independent Planning Inspector to test whether the
document meets the tests of soundness set out in the National Planning Policy Framework,
the duty to cooperate and the legal and procedural requirements. This includes an
22

Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.
These could include a Policies Map (if subject to change), a sustainability appraisal, a consultation statement or any
other documents that council deems relevant (Refer The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England)
Regulations 2012 Section 17)

14

B21

Statement of Community Involvement

assessment of the evidence base for the plan and the outcomes of the sustainability
appraisal. The independent inspector will consider any representations made at Publication
Draft stage, and the summary of responses made to earlier stages as summarised in the
Consultation Statement.
How you can be involved
23

8.35 The council will publicise the examination in accordance with statutory requirements , giving
people at least six weeks’ notice before the opening of any hearing session. The council will
advertise the examination venue, date and time on the council's website and will also put a
notice in the local newspaper.
People who made representations seeking change to the Publication Draft:
8.36 Those people who have made a representation to the statutory Publication Draft document
will receive written notification of the examination venue, date and time. They will usually will
be contacted by the Programme Officer for the examination, an independent person
appointed by the council to give administrative support to the Planning Inspector.
8.37 There may be a pre-hearing meeting, the purpose of which is to clarify the critical issues that
will be considered at the hearing sessions and explain the procedures. If there is a
pre-hearing meeting, all those who made representations to the Publication Draft will be
invited to attend. If there is no pre-hearing meeting the Inspector will issue a written note
setting out these matters.
8.38 Any person who makes representations seeking to change the document must, if they
request, be given the opportunity to appear before and be heard by the Inspector carrying out
the examination24. The Government encourages representations to be dealt with in writing.
However, if people would like to present their evidence in person, a public hearing will be
held. Written representations carry equal weight to those presented orally at the examination.
The Inspector will decide whether and how any oral representations will be heard, however,
this usually takes place as a round table debate chaired by the Inspector. No new
representations can be submitted.
Other Members of the Public:
8.39 Any interested party can attend the hearing sessions to watch but will not be able to
participate unless invited to by the Inspector.

Stage 4: Adoption
What this stage involves
8.40 Following examination of a Local Plan, the Inspector will produce a report with
recommendations. On receipt of the Inspector’s Report, the council will make a copy publicly
available and inform those persons who asked to be notified of its publication as soon as
25
reasonably practicable . Where necessary, the Submission Draft will be amended to reflect
The statutory requirements set out in Regulation 24, 35 and 36 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning)
(England) Regulations 2012
24
Regulation 20(6) Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended)
25
In accordance with Regulation 25, 35 and 36 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England)
23

15

B22

Statement of Community Involvement

the Inspector’s recommendations prior to being presented to the council for adoption at a
26
meeting of all Members of the council . Once adopted, the document will form part of the
Kingston Local Plan and becomes statutory planning policy.
8.41 A copy of the adopted Local Plan, and the Inspector's report, will be made available for
inspection at Guildhall 2, and on the council's website. A notice will be placed in the local
newspaper, and the council will notify anyone who has asked to be notified of adoption. The
council will also issue a press release to local newspapers that the document has been
adopted, and will consider additional means of publicising the Local Plan as appropriate.
How you can be involved
8.42 There is no scope to comment at this final stage of the process unless you wish to legally
27
challenge the document being adopted . The application must be made promptly, and in any
event, not later than the end of the six weeks from the date set out in the Adoption Notice.

Supplementary Planning Documents
8.43 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) provide further detail to supplement policies in
Development Plan documents, including the council’s documents and the London Plan.
Though not subject to independent examination, and therefore not having Development Plan
status, they will be a material consideration when determining planning applications.
Supplementary Planning Documents should be prepared only where necessary and in line
with the National Planning Policy Framework. They should build upon and provide more
detailed advice or guidance on the policies in the Local Plan. They should not add
unnecessarily to the financial burdens on development.
8.44 There are three stages to preparing a Supplementary Planning Document (SPD).

Stage 1: Preparation
What this stage involves
8.45 This is an early stage of preparation when the council is gathering evidence and considering
the relevant issues and options.
How you can be involved
8.46 The planning regulations do not require any particular form of consultation, or specifically
identify any persons who must be consulted. The council will engage with stakeholders as
considered necessary. The council will select organisations from its Local Plans consultee
database, and any others it considers should be involved, for early involvement. It is an
option at this stage to involve the public, though the merits of this will depend on the nature of
the document.

Regulations
26
The council must adopt in accordance with Regulation 26 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning)
(England) Regulations 2012. Meetings of the full council can be found here https://bit.ly/2E3I1UG
27
Any aggrieved person may make an application to the High Court under Section 113 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 on the grounds that the document is not within the appropriate power or that a
procedural requirement has not been complied with.

16

B23

Statement of Community Involvement

Stage 2: Formal consultation on a published draft SPD
What this stage involves
8.47 At this stage all the evidence collected from the preparation stage, including the results of
early engagement is considered and a draft document is published for consultation.

How you can be involved
8.48 At this stage the council is required to make the document available for public comment28
(which it will do at Guildhall 2, and on its website). The period for accepting written comments
will be between four to six weeks. The council is also required to place a notice in the local
newspaper and consult all specific and general consultees it considers to be affected by the
document (see Appendix 1 for more information on specific and general consultation bodies).
8.49 Depending on the nature of the SPD the council may take additional steps to involve
stakeholders and the wider community so that people can comment on the draft document.
8.50 When the council publishes the draft document for consultation, it will publish a consultation
statement setting out who it consulted at stage 1 when preparing the draft, how those
persons were consulted, a summary of the main issues raised, and how those issues have
been addressed in the draft document. This consultation statement will, as a minimum, be
sent to the specific and general consultees relevant to the document.
8.51 The council will acknowledge and consider any representations received and make changes
to its SPD where it is considered appropriate and beneficial to do so in light of those
comments. A final version of the document will be prepared along with a consultation
statement comprising a summary of the main issues raised and how they have been dealt
with in the document.

Stage 3: Adoption
What this stage involves
8.52 The council adopts the Supplementary Planning Document and will do this at an appropriate
committee. Before the council adopts the document, it will consider all the representations
made at stage 2, and will prepare a consultation statement setting out a summary of the main
issues raised, and how those issues have been addressed in the document.
How you can be involved
8.53 A copy of the adopted Supplementary Planning Document along with the consultation
statement will be made available for inspection at Guildhall 2, on the council's website and
will be made available to people upon request. The council will notify any person who has
asked to be notified of the adoption of the document29. The agenda and minutes of the
relevant committee meeting are made available to view on the council's website.
8.54 There is no scope to comment at this final stage of the process unless you wish to legally
30
challenge the document being adopted . The application must be made promptly, and in any
28

Regulations 11 to 13 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) Regulations 2012 (as amended)
Regulation 14 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) Regulations 2012
30
Any aggrieved person may make an application to the High Court under Section 113 of the Planning and
29

17

B24

Statement of Community Involvement

event, not later than the end of three months from the date set out in the Adoption Notice.

The Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule
8.55 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a local levy that is placed on new development
for the purpose of helping to raise funds for infrastructure to support development. The
council has set out in its Regulation 123 list the infrastructure projects that the council may
wholly or partly fund through CIL31. The council adopted its first Charging Schedule in
November 2015. This will be kept under review and it is likely that consultation relating to CIL
will take place again within the lifetime of this Statement of Community Involvement.
32

8.56 Regulations require local authorities to undertake a clearly defined procedure prior to
adopting a CIL Charging Schedule, which sets out the level of charge the council will require
for every additional square metre of new development. The requirements for consultation
prior to adoption include:
●

●

●

The publication and consultation of a Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule setting out
the council’s initial consideration of an appropriate charge (providing this is still a
statutory requirement);
The publication of a Draft Charging Schedule on which representations can be made
prior to its submission for an independent examination. This consultation will be for a
minimum of 4 weeks;
An examination in public of the Draft Charging Schedule. All those who made
representations on the Draft Charging Schedule will have the opportunity to make an
oral presentation at a public hearing.

8.57 The council will use many of the non-statutory methods of consultation applied to Local Plans
in the production or review of a Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule, and
where appropriate, will also be informed by relevant consultation responses to local plans
and other development plans, and SPDs. The consultation methods to be used will be
advertised on the council’s website and will accord with the Core Principles set out in section
7.
8.58 The council will also consult on changes to the Regulation 123 list. There are no statutory
requirements, however the council will consult on any draft changes including inviting anyone
on the council’s Local Plan consultation database to comment.
8.59 The governance arrangements for spending the CIL, and how you can put forward projects
for spending CIL on, especially the ‘neighbourhood portion’ can be found here.

Statement of Community Involvement
8.60 When preparing a Statement of Community Involvement the council will prepare a draft
document which will be subject to a formal public consultation. This will accord with the Core
Principles set out in section 7 with a particular focus on engaging as inclusively as possible
so that the community has an opportunity to comment on the statement.
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 on the grounds that the document is not within the appropriate power or that a
procedural requirement has not been complied with.
31
The Regulation list can be found at https://bit.ly/2SEsjHQ
32
Regulation 15 and 16 of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended). It is noted that the
government has consulted on changes to these Regulations and the council will, as a minimum, undertake the
requirements of the Regulations in place at the time.

18

B25

Statement of Community Involvement

9.

How can you be involved in planning applications?

9.1

The council’s Development Management team is responsible for the processing of all
planning applications within the Borough. Planning applications are formal requests for
consent or approval to undertake some form of 'development', for example a new building,
an extension to a building, or changes in the use of land or buildings.

9.2

When the council decides a planning application, it must judge the merits of the proposal
against policies in the 'Development Plan'. It must also take into account relevant
Supplementary Planning Documents and any other 'material considerations' (for example
national policy or local housing delivery performance). Sometimes material considerations
can justify the council reaching a decision which doesn’t fully accord with the published
policies of the Development Plan.

9.3

The council consults affected parties (e.g. neighbours), and relevant statutory consultees,
on planning applications. Comments received that are 'relevant to planning' are taken into
account when deciding the application.

9.4

This section sets out how you can be involved in planning applications at the pre-planning
stage, application stage and once a decision has been made.

9.5

Some planning applications are so significant that they are referred to the Mayor of London
who has certain powers to direct a decision. These include development of 150 residential
units or more, development over 30 metres in height and development on Green Belt or
Metropolitan Open Land33.

General advice and assistance
9.6

General planning advice can be sought from the council’s contact centre, which operates
between 9am and 5pm Monday to Friday (4.45pm on Friday). Where necessary, queries will
be passed on to the planning team for them to respond individually on a case by case basis.

9.7

A wealth of information on the Borough’s development management functions including
validation requirements can be obtained online at the council’s planning home page
www.kingston.gov.uk/planning

9.8

The Planning Portal is the UK Government's online planning and building regulations
resource for England and Wales and also provides advice and services for the public and
professionals www.planningportal.gov.uk

9.9

Additionally, Planning Aid for London (www.planningaidforlondon.org.uk) provides free,
independent and professional planning advice to communities and individuals who cannot
afford to pay professional fees. This service encourages people to become involved in the
planning system.

9.10 The contact details for Planning Aid are:
●
●

Telephone: 03007 729 808
Email: info@planningaidforlondon.org.uk

33

Referral criteria for planning applications are contained in The Town and Country Planning (Mayor of London) Order
2008.

19

B26

Statement of Community Involvement

Stage 1: The pre-application stage
9.11 Applicants are encouraged to hold pre-application discussions with the council. The council
has a formal procedure for dealing with pre application enquiries. The assessment of
schemes at pre-application stage together with appropriate fees allows us to dedicate time
with applicants to improve the quality of development schemes prior to submission.
9.12 Pre-application enquiries are not normally open to public consultation. However, the council
encourages developers/applicants to consult with the community about their initial schemes.
34
For certain developments the Localism Act specifically requires applicants to consult with
the community before submitting planning applications. This will give local people a chance
to comment when there is an early opportunity to influence the proposal.
9.13 The council particularly encourages developers of large or potentially controversial schemes
to involve the local community prior to submitting a planning application. Such involvement
should be carried out at an early stage enabling the views of the community to be taken on
board. Early community involvement can be a way of resolving misunderstandings and
tensions, which can arise in the progression of a new planning proposal. It can also help
avoid public objections at a later stage. The council will itself undertake consultation once a
planning application has been submitted.
9.14 The council’s Planning Charter will provide guidance on the means the council will normally
encourage developers to utilise to involve the local community before they submit their
application.
9.15 Pre application consultation should provide all groups, statutory and non-statutory, and
specialist interest groups, with an opportunity to participate in the evolution of development
proposals. Applicants are especially encouraged to liaise early with infrastructure providers
for new developments at the pre-application stage.
9.16 The results of any pre-application consultation with the community should be reported as
part of the submitted application so the council can understand how the community and
other stakeholders have been involved and should indicate:
●
●
●
●

The methods of consultation used to engage community participation, including hard to
reach groups
Who was consulted and the level of involvement
The quantitative and qualitative findings of the consultation and
How matters raised in consultation were taken into account in the submitted
development proposals

Stage 2: The application stage
9.17 Opportunities for formal community involvement occur when applications are lodged. It is at
this point when the majority of residents become involved in the planning system especially
if the proposed development affects them directly. The council determines around 3,000
applications a year ranging from householder applications to new housing schemes and
retail and office developments. These decisions are important to local people as they have a
direct impact on the way an area grows and develops.

34

Localism Act 2011: Chapter 4-Consultation, 122 ‘Consultation before applying for planning permission’.

20

B27

Statement of Community Involvement

9.18 The legal requirements for advertising and consulting on planning applications are set out in
the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order
2015. User friendly Government guidance on what steps the local planning authority must
take to involve members of the public on planning applications is also available to view
35
online at the Planning Practice Guidance website .
9.19 In addition to the statutory requirements, the council will look to vary our processes for
publicising planning applications to ensure that we are using the most appropriate means of
engagement on different types of proposals. These different thresholds and different means
of engagement are set out in our Planning Charter which can be found here.
36

9.20 Applications, including all of their supporting information, are made available online . There
may be times that some supporting information submitted needs to be held as confidential
and not published. However, the council will seek to maximise transparency and default to
making as much information public as we are able.
9.21 For detailed advice on how to comment on a planning application, please see our online
guidance here. Your comments on applications must be made in writing to the council and
we strongly encourage all comments on planning applications to be submitted online via our
website. Whilst we will continue to accept comments by letter or e-mail, the best way to
ensure that your comments have been recorded against the correct application is to use our
online planning portal, available here. Verbal comments cannot be taken into account by
officers in making their recommendations.
9.22 Comments made on planning applications (representations) can be for or against the
proposals, but they must be on "planning issues". The council has prepared guidelines
which clarify those issues that are relevant to making representations on planning
applications and these are contained within the Planning Charter.
9.23 Full consideration will be given, and due weight attached, to the views of the community and
stakeholders. All responses to applications are considered but, due to the volume of
representations that are received, we are not able to individually respond to all questions or
issues raised.
9.24 All representations received will be redacted in accordance with data protection
requirements and placed online within the planning application as a public document. Third
parties will therefore be able to see and make copies of any comments you send.
9.25 When a planning application is amended or revised, the planning officer will need to decide
whether the scale of changes warrants further publicity. This will depend partly on the
relevance of the changes to the representations that have been received. When further
notification is appropriate, we will contact again those affected to draw their attention to the
changes and set out the time scale for further representations.
9.26 All the representations received on any application are summarised with a report produced
by the planning officer. This report will highlight the issues and set out how these have been
taken into account by the planning officer in their assessment of the proposal. At the
culmination of the process the report is added to the website so that you can see how your
35

Information on statutory consultation is available at http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/

For those customers without access to the internet, this information can also be viewed using the computers at the
council Offices and Borough libraries

36

21

B28

Statement of Community Involvement

concerns have been taken into account. This also ensures that anyone can view the
information and assessment upon which a decision has been made.
9.27 There are sometimes concerns raised that sit outside the scope of the planning powers held
by the Council as the Local Planning Authority. To aid transparency, where we think an
issue raised falls outside of the planning process we will highlight why in our report.

Stage 3: The decision stage
9.28 Applications will be decided after the expiry date for receipt of representations. All
comments we receive by the end of the notification period will be taken into consideration.
Any late representations will be considered only up until the application is decided, whether
by officers or the appropriate committee.
9.29 The Corporate Head of Planning decides most planning applications under powers
delegated by the council. However, some applications have to go to a planning committee:
either a Neighbourhood Committee or the Development Control Committee. The council’s
scheme of delegation for planning application can be viewed on the website. Committee
meetings are open to the public. In these cases we will write to all those who wrote to us
about the application to let them know the date of the committee meeting and direct them to
further procedural guidance regarding the meeting, such as speaking rights.
9.30 In some cases, prior to a committee meeting, site visits also take place with officers,
councillors and where appropriate applicants. These are solely to allow members of the
committee to view the site context and ask questions of clarification. There is no debate of
the merits of the proposal allowed at these visits and therefore interested parties are not
invited to attend.
9.31 Occasionally, for large scale or complex proposals, a Pre-Committee Briefing may take
place before the Committee meets to determine an application or set of applications. These
briefing sessions are designed to enable the Committee to learn more about the details of
applications, seek clarification where it is required and to better understand issues raised by
objectors prior to the formal determination of the application at a future meeting. Briefing
sessions are open to the public. Whilst the running of the meeting is at the discretion of the
Chairman, the indicative format is as follows:
● The Developer will supply all presentation materials and these will be displayed in
the meeting room.
● Officers will introduce the proposal and advise of issues arising.
● Members will be able to ask questions of clarification of the applicant and local
residents. The applicant and objectors can only respond to questions from members
of the Planning Committee and Ward Councillors
● An attendance record will be kept, the discussion recorded and a note of the
meeting reported to the Planning Committee as part of the final report when the
application is submitted for determination.
9.32 At the end of the process we provide notification of decisions by updating the application
details on our webpages and placing a decision list on the website.

Stage 4: The post application stage
9.33 If an application is refused, or the decision includes a condition that the applicant/developer
is not satisfied with, or the application has not been determined within the statutory time
22

B29

Statement of Community Involvement

period, the applicant/developer can appeal the decision/ or non-determination. Only the
applicant has the right to appeal against the council's decision. Third parties and members
of the public cannot appeal against the council's decision. Any challenge to a planning
decision from third parties or members of the public can only be in the High Court by
Judicial Review.
9.34 The appeal process is not managed by the council but by the Secretary of State, who will
appoint an independent Planning Inspector to hear the appeal. If an appeal is made, we will
contact all those originally consulted on the application letting them know the appeal has
been made. The council must send copies of all letters originally received about the
application to the Planning Inspector. Advice will be given as to how to make further
representations to the Planning Inspector who will determine the appeal.
9.35 The council lists on our website all planning appeals lodged and all planning appeals
decided in the past six months.

10. How well are we doing?
10.1 The council seeks to continuously improve the way it engages the public. Whilst the council
is committed to providing a high level service to the community, making sure everyone has
the opportunity to be involved in the planning process, the council will look to achieve this in
the most resource efficient way. Involving the community during all planning processes has
time, staff resource and funding implications and must be a key consideration when planning
any form of engagement or consultation. Any approach used when engaged stakeholders will
reflect the type of work being undertaken. Any non-statutory approaches used during
engagement or consultation activities will also be reviewed to assess whether such an
approach was effective and achieved value for money.
10.2 The effectiveness of the Statement of Community Involvement will be monitored. If you have
any comments, write to us at localplan@kingston.gov.uk

23

B30

Statement of Community Involvement

Appendix 1: Consultation groups involved in planning policy
production
The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 list certain
organisations and types of organisation that are “specific” and “general consultees”. Please note
this list is not exhaustive and also relates to successor bodies where re-organisations occur.

Specific Consultation bodies
In Kingston the “specific consultation bodies” which the council considers to have an interest are:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Environment Agency
Historic England
Natural England
Mayor of London (Greater London Authority)
Civil Aviation Authority
Homes and Communities Agency
Primary Care Support
Network Rail Infrastructure Limited
Secretary of State for Transport
Highways England
Transport for London
Surrey County Council
London Borough of Richmond upon Thames
London Borough of Merton
London Borough of Sutton
London Borough of Wandsworth
Mole Valley District Council
Elmbridge Borough Council
Epsom and Ewell Borough Council
Claygate Parish Council
Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime
Relevant telecommunications companies
Relevant electricity and gas companies
Relevant water and sewerage undertakers
Lead Local Flood Authority

General consultation bodies
“General” consultation bodies” are those which the council considers appropriate and fall into the
following categories:
●

Voluntary bodies some or all of whose activities benefit any part of the Royal Borough
of Kingston upon Thames
● Bodies which represent the interests of different racial, ethnic or national groups in the
Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
● Bodies which represent the interests of different religious groups in the Royal
Borough of Kingston upon Thames
● Bodies which represent the interests of disabled persons in the Royal Borough of
Kingston upon Thames
● Bodies which represent the interests of persons carrying on business in the Royal
24

B31

Statement of Community Involvement

Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Duty to Co-operate bodies
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Environment Agency
Historic England
Natural England
The Mayor of London
Civil Aviation Authority
Homes and Community Agency
NHS England/Primary Care Support
Office of Rail Regulation
Transport for London
Highway Agency
The Marine Management Organisation

Other Consultees
The council has a Local Plan consultation database, which has been set up in accordance with
GDPR. To add your details to the Local Plan database please go to the Stay Informed page on the
council’s website and complete the short form.

25

Version: March 2019 (DRAFT)



ANNEX 2

Planning Charter
(Development Management)
Our Charter

1.1

This Charter sets out how the Planning Department of the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames (the council), will operate in our
role as the Local Planning Authority when handling planning matters within the Borough.

1.2

The Charter is designed to set out the council's commitment to the users of our planning service to provide clarity on the levels of
service that we strive to uphold.

2.

Customers

2.1

There are many ‘customers’ the council must serve in our role as Planning Authority. The applicants or developers submitting planning
applications are direct customers of the service we offer, but equally so are local residents that might make representations on
applications, the business community, Councillors, other parts of the Council, Statutory Bodies, interest groups, and other
organisations interested in local planning issues.

2.2

The council will seek to operate our service to serve equally the sometimes competing demands and expectations of all our customers.
The guiding principle being that the decision making process should be accessible and transparent so that interested parties get the
opportunity to be involved in the process and make their views known.

2.3

In accordance with Government advice1, the council will operate in a positive and proactive manner. This means that we will, in dealing
with planning proposals, work with the applicant to seek solutions to problems or concerns arising.

1

NPPF and Article 35 DMPO.

B32

1.

Version: March 2019 (DRAFT)

3.

Consultation and Engagement

3.1

The baseline for the means of engagement used by the council to consult with the community and interested groups and organisations
is based upon the Government's statutory requirements as set out in the Development Management Procedure Order (DMPO)2.
Where minor changes to statutory minimum requirements occur, the council alter way in which we publicises planning applications to
reflect legislative changes. Such changes would then be incorporated at the next review or refresh of the Planning Charter.

3.2

The purpose of this Charter is to set out those processes peculiar to the council that we will follow when publicising planning proposals
falling to us for determination as the Local Planning Authority. For scenarios not explicitly captured within the Charter, the default
position will be to follow the requirements of the DMPO.

3.3

Transparency is the principle that underpins the council’s processes and all planning applications shall be uploaded on the council’s
website. This will include applications for which there is no statutory requirement to undertake consultation such as proposed tree
works and lawful development certificates.

Type of Development
Major Development: Residential
developments involving 10 or more
homes, or where the site area is 0.5
hectares or more.

Press
Advert
Yes

Site
Notice

Site Notice
or Neighbour
Notification
Yes

Other development: 1000m2 floor
space or 1.0 hectares.

2

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015

B33

Table 1: Publicity on Planning Applications
The council’s additional notification or
response to statutory requirements
The council will always notify neighbours in
adjoining and opposite properties and post site
notices. (See Notes below table)

Version: March 2019 (DRAFT)

Applications subject to
Environmental Impact Assessment
which are accompanied by an
environmental statement
Application that is a departure
from the Local Plan

Yes

Yes

Neighbour notification letters will be sent out if
applicable and depending on the location of the
development.

Yes

Yes

Application which would affect a
right of way to which Part 3 of the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981
applies
Minor Development Residential
development involving less than
10 homes.
Other development: floor space is
less than 1000m2
Change of use applications

Yes

Yes

Neighbour notification letters will be sent out if
applicable and depending on the location of the
development
Neighbour notification letters will be sent out if
applicable and depending on the location of the
development
Yes

Development affecting the setting
of a listed building
Listed Building consent for works
affecting the exterior of the
building.

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

A site notice will be posted if any adjoining
land/property cannot be identified.
The council will post site notices where there is
likely to be wider public interest or where it is not
practicable to notify adjoining properties
Notify neighbours in adjoining and opposite
properties if they could be affected by the
proposed development. (See Notes below table)
The council will post site notices where there is
likely to be wider public interest or where it is not
practicable to notify adjoining properties
Notify neighbours in adjoining and opposite
properties.
Notify neighbours in adjoining and opposite
properties.

B34

Householder developments

Notify neighbours in adjoining and opposite
properties. (See Notes below table)

Version: March 2019 (DRAFT)

Development affecting the
character of a conservation area.
Applications to vary or discharge
conditions attached to a listed
building consent or conservation
area consent, or involving exterior
works to a listed building.
Prior Notification of Larger Homes
Household Extensions
Prior Notification of Changes of
Use

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

None

Applications for Works to Trees
Protected by a Tree Preservation
Order
Notice of works to trees in
conservation areas
Certificates of Lawfulness for
Existing Use and Development

None

Certificates of Lawfulness for
Proposed Use and Development

None

Yes

Neighbour notification only. No site notice

Yes

Neighbour notification and site notice where
considered relevant by officers. (See Notes
below table)
Neighbour notification where considered relevant
by officers and site notice where considered
relevant by officers. (See Notes below table)
Neighbour notification only where considered
relevant by officers applications. (See Notes
below table)
Neighbour notification only where considered
relevant by officers. (See Notes below table)

None

None

None

Neighbour notification where considered
relevant by officers. (See Notes below table)

None

A site notice may be posted in very exceptional
circumstances.
None

B35

Prior Approval –Agriculture,
Forestry, Telecoms, Demolition of
building
Advertisement Applications

Notify neighbours in adjoining and opposite
properties.
Notify neighbours in adjoining and opposite
properties.

Version: March 2019 (DRAFT)

Notes
Notifying affected parties
When the council decides how large the notification area should be, it takes account of factors such as traffic, noise and visual
impact. Letters are sent to those considered to be directly affected by a proposal. The council offers a translation service and can
present information in large print, Braille, on audio cassette or in community languages if requested.

3.5

Additional publicity for large scale or controversial proposals
For applications that are of a significant scale, likely to be controversial, or of interest to the wider community, the council will
consider taking additional publicity measures to those in Table 1, including a press release to local newspapers. The council will
also consider holding a public meeting or exhibition, providing an opportunity for the public to discuss the proposal with Council
officers. Any events for the public will be arranged so they are as accessible as is reasonably possible. On planning applications
that have a borough-wide significance the council can also make use of forums wherever possible.

3.6

Working with others
As well as notifying the properties affected by a proposal, the council will consult adjoining authorities and other statutory
organisations when proposals are considered to affect their interests.

3.7

Improvements
We will continue to review our consultation processes to ensure we continue to best engage with the community. Periodically, the
council may deviate from the criteria of Table 1 in order to trail and test alternative approaches.

B36

3.4

Version: March 2019 (DRAFT)

4.

Our Service Standards
Applicants

4.1

When you make an application to the Council, we will seek to achieve the following service standards:
● Within 5 days, we will check your submission against the National and Local list of planning application requirements. If your
application is invalid we will alert your appointed Agent explaining what is required.
● When your application is submission is correct, we notify your appointed Agent to confirming validation and provide details of the
anticipated decision date.
● Your application will be handled by a planning case officer who will be the key point of contact during the councils processing of
your proposal.
● When appropriate, the planning case officer will contact your appointed Agent to discuss any amendments or minor revisions that
could allow the application to address outstanding concerns.
Neighbours and interested parties
We welcome engagement from those interested in the planning applications the council is determining. To support this we will operate
to the follow service standards:
● We will notify neighbours and consultees of applications in a timely manner and in accordance with Table 1 above.
● Seek to ensure that the application documentation and plans are made available through our website.
● Consider running a re-consultation exercise to alert interested parties when changes or amendments are made to application
which could affect matters raised in the consultation period.

4.3

Please note: We do not have the capacity individually acknowledge or respond to the significant numbers of comments we receive on
planning applications. Our commitment is that all the comments received will be summarised and included within the planning case
officer’s report. The report will investigate each of these points and provide a narrative to explain how they have been taken into
account in the assessment made of the planning application.

B37

4.2

C1

Appendix C

Community Engagement Committee
26 March 2019
Kingston Business Improvement District (BID) Ballot Election
Report by Director of Growth

Purpose
To approve the commencement of the ballot process for Kingston First (Business
Improvement District 4).
Recommendation that 1. The Kingston First (BID 4) ballot process commence and the Returning Officer
appoint the Electoral Reform Services to make ballot arrangements; and
2. The Director of Growth, in consultation with the Leader and relevant opposition
spokesperson, be given delegated authority to vote ‘yes’ in the Kingston First (BID
4) ballot process subject to the ballot offer being satisfactory.
Benefits to the Community:
The establishment of the BID has been a key part of ensuring the Town Centre remains
a vibrant and economically prosperous part of the borough. It benefits the community by
providing safer, cleaner and accessible streets; enhancing the customer/visitor
experience; and driving higher footfall in Kingston town centre.

Key Points
A.

This report seeks authorisation for the Director of Growth, in consultation with the
Leader and relevant opposition spokesperson, to be given delegated authority to
commence the Kingston BID 4 ballot process. This will set in motion the following
next steps:
1. The Committee approve the council’s Returning officer (Ballot Holder) to make
ballot arrangements upon formal request from Kingston First (BID Proposer) to
hold a ballot.
2. The Committee resolve the council vote ‘yes’ in the ballot with the decision to be
exercised by the Director of Growth, in consultation with the Leader and opposition
spokesperson, and subject to the detail of the final offer from Kingston First being
satisfactory.
3. Draft timeline
Key Dates 2019

Meetings/Actions

12 Feb

BID Renewal Exec Group

25 Feb

Draft Report deadline

C2

March

Complete internal baselining - three areas for agreement

26 March

Community Engagement Committee:
Ballot / approach sign off

Apr-Jun

Discussions with Kingston First: service delivery

27 June

Ballot

June/July

Kingston Town Neighborhood Committee

Autumn 2019

Service agreement(s) sign off

Jan 2020

New BID Term

Context
4. Following a successful ballot the first Business Improvement District for Kingston
Town Centre (and, indeed, the first BID in the country) commenced in January
2005 and concluded in December 2009. The second BID commenced on 1
January 2010 and ran until the end of December 2014. The third BID commenced
on 1 January 2015 and will run until the end of December 2019.
Please see Annex 1 f or the BID map boundary.
5. Officers have been in discussion with Kingston First for some months to review the
success of BID 3 and to consider options with regard to a fourth BID. Initial
discussions were reported to Kingston First’s Board who have since formally
agreed that the Council should be informed of their wish to start the legal process
for a fourth BID.
6. The current plan is to hold the ballot during May and June 2019 which, subject to a
successful outcome, would enable BID 4 to commence from 1 January 2020.
Further details of the ballot process and timescales are set out later in this report.
Proposal and Options
7. The current legislation states the council is required to make provisions to hold a
ballot for the BID. Under Part 4 of the Local Government Act 2003 (the 2003 Act)
the Council, as the billing authority for its administrative area, may make
arrangements ('BID arrangements') with respect to an area (a BID) comprising all,
or part of the area of the authority. The 2003 Act is supplemented by the Business
Improvement Districts (England) Regulations 2004, as amended, (the Regulations)
which make detailed provision for, amongst other things, holding a ballot and the
procedure for approving to a BID. A BID may only be established where those
entitled to vote approve the BID proposals.
Context
Why should the council should vote ‘yes’ in the Kingston First ballot ?

C3
8. Kingston First are a key partner in the development and delivery of the key
strategic economic and growth priorities for the town centre. The BID company
are currently delivering a range of town centre focused services under contract to
the council. The BID company also provides a strategic partnership framework
which enables the council to engage effectively with a wide range of commercial
interests in the town centre. In recent months the BID have been working with the
council on the following strategic themes/projects: Reimagining Kingston Town
centre; Kingston Town Centre Vision work; and supporting a number of initiatives
around digital connectivity which includes free public WiFi, small cells and the
Internet of Things (IoT). Going forward it is expected that the BID will play an
important role in facilitating businesses’ engagement in the development of
strategic sites within the town centre.

9. The council as a full BID member and rate payer will reserve its final position of
support until the ballot ‘offer’ has been issued and considered by the Director of
Growth in consultation with the relevant Portfolio Holders and opposition
spokesperson prior to the ballot being undertaken.
Kingston First Achievements
10. Kingston First have highlighted a number of activities and achievements in their
latest Annual Report (2017-18) - some of which are:
Representation and Strategic Projects
11. Kingston First represents the views of the town centre business community to
ensure Kingston’s business agenda is represented locally and across the capital.
Kingston First have also been a co-partner in the commissioning of the
Reimagining Kingston Town Centre public realm project and emerging Visioning
work which is taking place focussing on the future of Kingston town centre.
Supporting businesses and employees
Free skills workshops and training
12. Kingston First introduced a new series of free business workshops and training
to help upskill workers and educate businesses in Kingston. In the past two
years, 500 employees have attended organised workshops which covered the
following topics Emergency First Aid at Work; Fire Marshall Training;
Employment Law & GDPR; Social Media Skills; and Counter Terrorism.
Keep it Kingston Card
13. In May 2017, Kingston First launched the the Keep it Kingston Card which enables
Kingston employees to save money, while providing local businesses with a
platform to promote their services, products and offers. A total of 11,500 cards
have been distributed across 580 businesses, with 160 businesses providing an
offer to be part of the scheme.
Everyday Cost Savings

C4
14. Kingston First experienced a 10% increase in the number of businesses accessing
the First Mile free recycling and trade waste scheme, and helped more than 25
businesses save £26,000 across utility bills, telecoms, and core costs. Over 200
businesses have saved money using Kingston First initiatives. Alongside this
Kingston First has also secured exclusive parking discounts and season ticket
deals for over 300 town centre employees.

Marketing and Promotion
Christmas
15. Kingston First have developed Kingston’s Christmas market and campaign such
that it is now recognised as one of the top Christmas market destinations in
London. They invest in and install the town’s Christmas lights and regional
marketing activity.
Events
16. The company run family events such as ‘Thumbs Up It’s Thursday’, the new
Children’s Literary Festival and Christmas Lights Switch on. Recently, Kingston
First has introduced an ‘outdoor museum’ concept working with Kingston
Museum to commemorate the centenary of the end of World War One.
Sector support
17. The company is a co-founder and partner in the Kingston Business Excellence
Awards, it has most recently introduced promotional guides to support the town’s
independent and evening economy, as well as producing maps and town wide
marketing materials which are used for targeted campaigns.
Online presence
18. The company runs the town’s online channels ‘In Kingston’ with the website
being used more than 10,000 times per month.
Streetscene and Operations
Ranger Response service
19. There is a team of town rangers employed by Kingston First to maintain the
streetscape, and respond to support local businesses and visitors. Kingston
First introduced a new ranger response vehicle to allow rangers to respond
more effectively by using a new green electric-powered vehicle which is small
enough to be permitted access through pedestrian areas. In total, the ranger
response service removed 704 pieces of graffiti, 2,495 posters and flyers and
dealt with 10,000 incidents between January 17 to March 2018.
Attractive town centre
20. Kingston First invests in seasonal displays and additional deep cleansing
programmes, including an array of on-street floral and horticultural enhancements
and 98,000 metres squared pavement deep cleaned. Further information about
Kingston
First’s
achievements
can
be
found
on
their website
(www.kingstonfirst.co.uk).
New Business Plan: Emerging 2020-24 themes

C5

21. Following consultation with members and partners, four key themes will form the
pillars of the new business plan:
● Quality Streets and Spaces/ Enhancing Experiences
● Attracting a nd Promoting
● Supporting and Informing
● Representing and Influencing

Quality Streets and Spaces/Enhancing Experiences
Transforming navigation and connectivity
● Enhance and invest in connections and ease of navigation across the town centre
to improve people’s ability to find and access all areas of the town.
Enhancing the experience – ensuring quality public spaces which are clean
and attractive
● Expand town centre areas and increase regularity of deep cleans.
● Invest in improving quality of streets and public spaces.
● Provide responsive cleansing to public streets and spaces.
Our environment- greener and air quality
● Continue to deliver seasonal planting and quality green infrastructure; invest in
flexible and engaging green spaces or initiatives which support a greener town
centre.
● Work with partners to introduce schemes which contribute to improved air quality.
● Lobby for improved access and connectivity to the town centre.
Markets and Market Place management
● Manage and maintain crucial Kingston space, ensure it adds to the vibrancy of the
town, as well as Kingston’s broader visitor offer whilst making sure it doesn’t
compete with town centre businesses.
● Make the Market plastic free and the most environmentally friendly market in
London.
● Support community events in the space, and provide member opportunities to
promote themselves.
● Work with RBK to develop a strategy for ongoing development of space, market
stalls and the space’s assets.
● Direct additional income made from the space back into town centre, and projects
and service to support all businesses.
Attracting and Promoting
●
●
●
●

Managing Kingston’s central online presence
Enhance our online presence to be the ‘go to’ source for everything in Kingston.
Redevelop website to become complete business and events directory with free
marketing for all members.
Produce editorial content shining a spotlight on sectors and seasonal campaigns.
Manage and develop engaging and interactive social media channels.

Greater London’s number one Christmas destination
● Invest in new, town-wide Christmas decorations.

C6
● Improve and enhance the popular Christmas market, and bolster the associated
activity programme to drive footfall at this key period.

Arts, culture, our heritage and the river
● Continue with production of the town’s printed map, and explore expanding it
further through a town wide cultural/heritage trail.
● Public exhibitions and installations to activate spaces and showcase art and
culture.
● Partner with cultural organisations to promote, support and provide opportunities
to enliven and activate the town centre.
Campaigns and profiling
● Continue with ‘Thumbs up it’s Thursday’ , seasonal campaigns such as Summer
and Halloween, and produce profile-raising activities such as Children’s Literary
Fest.
● Introduce town wide student ‘Welcome Week’ opportunities.
● Increase use of digital and online tactics and advertising.
Sector spotlighting and support
● Continue to support the Kingston Business Excellence Awards, Independents’
Guide, and Evening and Night Time economy promotion.
Supporting and Informing
Saving you money
● Provide 5 years’ worth of free recycling and reduced trade waste collection costs.
● Continue with negotiated car parking cost reductions for employees, and explore
further opportunities for cost saving for businesses.
Complimentary training and workshops
● Continue with the development and expansion of free skills sessions and training
opportunities. Focus on feedback from members to help curate programmes which
support business needs and help their bottom line.
Expanding Keep it Kingston
● Continue growing the Keep it Kingston card and improve its online/digital features
for businesses and users and invest in a Keep it Kingston app.
● Introduce new events for cross sector networking and cost-effective team socials
and networking, focussed on improving the connections and B2B opportunities for
Kingston’s business community and saving costs for employees (e.g. Film Clubs,
Sports Days, team events for B2B profile raising).
●
●
●
●

Safe and resilient
Continue supporting Pubwatch.
Oversee the introduction of digital radios and online reporting/data sharing,
introduce a ‘try before you buy’ radio scheme to help businesses gain more
understanding of the service.
Build on our trial of an on-street, regular, ‘high visibility’ personnel/ team through
key trading and footfall periods.
Continue to work with our partners: RBK, Police, KCAH all supporting Kingston as
one of London’s safest boroughs.

C7
Influence and Leadership/ Representing

A shared vision
● Taking on the town’s future together - champion a dedicated purpose and vision,
working with partners to deliver a shared plan of action for Kingston and its future.
Your town, your voice
● Continue to have a dedicated team to represent and support Kingston businesses.
● Regeneration and development agenda - managing the town and supporting
members through major change with forthcoming developments and ensuring
‘business as usual’ for visitors and nearby businesses through the build works.
● Work in partnership with RBK, TfL and others to lobby for and invest in new ideas
and solutions to tackle Kingston’s transport network.
Keeping you informed- insights and data from consumer, business and
town-wide perspectives
● Continue providing unparalleled data and insights on Kingston town centre.
● Provide regular updates on town centre information, from timely traffic news to
town events updates.
● Invest in professional consumer data and research to keep track of perceptions
and sentiments about Kingston.
Working with our partnerships
● Act as a link and work closely with our local MP, RBK, Police, London & Partners,
and property owners, as well as national industry bodies to support the interests of
a successful Kingston town centre.
22. The Council will be providing its response and working with the BID to shape their
priorities going forward after a successful ‘yes’ ballot.
Please see Annex 2 for a summary of the Kingston First consultation results.
Consultations
23. Kingston First has been consulting with partners and its members to gauge
feedback on current services, and steer direction of the key themes for 2020-24
term over the past 6 months - in particular the consultation activities include:
● Written/online survey sent to members (21% response rate)
● 200+ meetings with businesses and organisations
● Hundreds of phone calls to consult with members and their staff, invitations
for one-to-one meets offered
● Regular emails and updates on the ballot process.
Please see Annex 3 to view the questions asked as part of the Kingston First
member consultation in September 2018.
The Ballot Process
24. The process for undertaking a ballot for a BID is prescribed in some detail in
Regulations. The main steps of the process are as follows:

C8
a. The BID proposer (Kingston First) requests the Billing Authority (the
Council) to instruct the Ballot Holder (the Council’s Returning Officer) to
hold a ballot.

b. Subject to being satisfied that the BID proposer has met the various
requirements of the Regulations, the Billing Authority instructs the Ballot
Holder to proceed with a ballot.
c. The Returning Officer gives notice of the ballot and an explanation of the
BID Proposals to all persons entitled to vote (i.e. those listed on the
Business Rate Payers database held by the Council for each property in the
proposed BID area) giving details of the time scale for the ballot etc.
d. The ballot itself is to be a postal ballot and takes place over a minimum of
a 28 day period and will be undertaken by the Electoral Reform Services on
behalf of the BID and appointed by the council.
e. Following the count, a statement of the result of the ballot is prepared
and public notice of the outcome given.
f. There is then a period of 28 days during which interested parties can
object to the outcome of the ballot to the Secretary of State on the grounds
that ‘material irregularities’ as defined in the Regulations have occurred.
g. Assuming a “yes” vote, the BID can commence.
25. The Regulations lay down detailed time scales for the various stages of this
process. The timetable agreed with Kingston First envisages a ballot being
in late May 2019 with the despatch of ballot papers on Tuesday 28 May 2019.
During this time the BID will also publish its offer document to eligible
businesses. The day of ballot is Thursday 27 June 2019 and the counting of
votes and publication of results will take place on Friday 28 June 2019.
Resource Implications
26. Apart from officer time, the main costs incurred are likely to be those associated
with the conduct of the Ballot. As before, it is proposed to engage Electoral Reform
Services to ensure independence in the process. The cost of this is estimated at
around £3,100 and will be met from existing Budgets.
27. Assuming a positive outcome to the ballot, there will be additional costs for the
Council due to the administration of the billing process - which includes billing
business rate payers in the BID area; chasing up non payment; and updating
changes regarding business rate payers. The legislation states that the Council, as
the billing authority, is the only legal entity that can collect the levy. The Council
has the existing resources and processes to conduct this service as it has in
respect of the past three BID terms. Costs incurred for this levy collection service
are recouped via a service charge to Kingston First on an annual basis, with the
costs being charged against the BID levy. It is envisaged that these arrangements
will continue for a fourth BID.
28. As now, the Council will itself incur an on-going cost through the levy on the
business rate in respect of the various properties it owns in the BID area ranging
from the Guildhall Complex to a number of bus shelters. This equates to

C9
approximately £35,000 per year in 2020 based on current property ownership and
tenancy. Again this cost is built into existing budgets and has been built into the
medium term financial plan that is set for the period 2014 to 2018.

29. During the existing BID 3 the Council has provided core funding of £34,800 for
Kingston Town Centre Management. This figure will be subject to review as part of
the business case approval process.
30. A range of town centre focused services were transferred from direct council
control to Kingston First to deliver under contract as part of BID 3. The Council’s
revenue budget will continue to reflect the fact that it has agreed to pay Kingston
First to provide these services. In 2018-19 the net budget transferred was
£106,766. However, this figure will be subject to review as part of the business
case approval process.
31. The Directors of Growth and Corporate & Commercial, in consultation with the
Leader of the Council, will review the provision of these contracted out services as
part of the sign off of the 2020-2024 business plan and service level agreements
for BID 4, covering baseline services, enhanced services and transferred services.
This will also allow the council to review the existing contract management
arrangements and if necessary introduce more robust contract management
processes and Key Performance Indicators. Given the estimated value of the
contract, under the current scheme of delegation, any future contract approval
will be delegated to the Director of Growth.
Legal Implications
32. Under Part 4 of the Local Government Act 2003 (the 2003 Act) the Council, as the
authority for its administrative area, may make arrangements ('BID arrangements')
with respect to an area (a BID) comprising all, or part of the area of the
authority.The purpose of BID arrangements is to enable the projects specified in
the arrangements to be carried out for the benefit of the BID, or those who live,
work or carry on any activity within it; and for those projects to be financed (in
whole or in part) by a levy ('BID levy') imposed on the non-domestic ratepayers, or
a class of them, within the BID.
33. The 2003 Act is supplemented by the Business Improvement Districts (England)
Regulations 2004, as amended, (the Regulations) which make detailed provision
for, amongst other things, holding a ballot and the procedure for approving to a
BID. A BID may only be established where those entitled to vote approve the BID
proposals.
34. The Body of this report details the procedural requirements which must be
satisfied under the provisions of the 2003 Act and the Regulations for the ballot
etc. and, provided these are satisfied, there no legal implications at this preliminary
stage.
Risk Assessment
35. If the ballot outcome was a ‘No’ then the council would have no BID in place for
Kingston town centre which would lead to a loss of the additional day-to-day

C10
operational services provided to residents, visitors and businesses in the BID area.
Without the BID there would also be no strategic voice and single point of contact
representing the interests of the businesses in the town centre. The council would
either have to directly provide or procure alternative service providers for the
services currently provided under contract by the BID. The council is likely to be
under pressure from businesses to reintroduce town centre management function
with limited resources.

36. There are reputational risks associated with running any ballot for the council,
especially if it wasn’t well run or if there were issues or complaints are raised by
BID members meant for Kingston First which are then redirected at the council.
37. Potential changes to business rates legislation could leave the BID with a reduced
income through their levy and/or broader macroeconomic factors with businesses
relocating or particularly retail businesses at risk of going into administration.
Equalities Impact Assessment
38. This is not required at this stage because the ballot does not seek to choose
between or promote a particular strategy, policy or approach.
Health Implications
39. This is not required at this stage because the ballot does not seek to choose
between or promote a particular strategy, policy or approach.
Road Network Implications
40. This is not required at this stage because the ballot does not seek to choose
between or promote a particular strategy, policy or approach.
Environmental and Air Quality Implications
41. This not required at this stage because the ballot does not seek to choose
between or promote a particular strategy, policy or approach.
Held by author/other - Duncan Brown
Author of report - Duncan Brown, Assistant Director, duncan.brown@kingston.gov.uk.
List of reports and supporting information
Annex 1 - Kingston BID map
Annex 2 - Kingston First Consultation Results
Annex 3 - Kingston First Consultation Questionnaire (September 2018)
List of Background reports/documents
Kingston First Annual Report 2017-18
Kingston First Business Improvement District report (Kingston Town Neighbourhood
Committee 13 November 2013)

C11

ANNEX 1

C12

Your town
Your thoughts
Your Kingston First
In September we issued a consultation survey to all members
to ask for your feedback on our projects and services and what
priorities you would like us to address for the 2020-2024 term.
Thank you to everyone who gave their feedback.
Here is a summary of your responses.

WHO RESPONDED
The survey was completed by respondents representing all business sectors in Kingston town centre.

% of respondents by sector

Other

Anonymous

Office / Commercial
/ Professional Services

Restaurant / Cafe / Bar

Retail

Arts & Culture
Health Services

YOUR COMMENTS
We received a number of comments relating to the projects and services we currently coordinate as well as
the priorities you would like us to address in the years ahead.

“
“

A voice that supports the continued
development of the town so it remains
a top destination in years to come

“

Kingston as a
cultural destination

”

“

Events for networking, including
charities/third sector and businesses

“
“
”
”
“ ”“
”

Would prefer a Keep it Kingston
app instead of a card

Create more student
focused events

More cleaning
of streets

”
”

Cost of car-parking
is an issue

Kingston First needs to have a strong voice
in influencing the future strategy for Kingston
and at the heart of this needs to be a plan to
improve accessibility and increase the number
and frequency of visitors into Kingston.

”

C13
HOW YOU VALUE OUR PROJECTS & SERVICES

75%
52%
75%
59%
62%
69%
69%
71%
62%
81%
75%

Free recycling service with First Mile
Free training and workshops
Keep it Kingston scheme
Cost saving on day-to-day
business services
Online presence with the ‘In Kingston’
website and social media
Summer and Christmas
marketing campaigns
Raising the profile of the town
through press coverage
Investing in Christmas lights, summer
banners, and floral installations
Providing Radiolink and
crime reduction initiatives
Providing a clean and
welcoming town centre
Delivering the Christmas market

% of respondents that rated ‘valuable/very valuable’

We asked you to prioritise a number of projects in order of how valuable they are to you and your business.

YOUR PRIORITIES FOR 2020-2024
We asked you to prioritise a number of projects in order of how important they are to you and your business.
We have ranked these below based on your feedback.

1

4

Working with partners to
improve access and
connectivity into and around
Kingston town centre
e.g. car parking, signage,
public transport

Promoting Kingston as a
destination
e.g. organising events, driving
tourism, place marketing

2

5

Representing the town centre
business community and
lobbying on issues that are
important to you
e.g. Crossrail2, business rates,
town centre issues

Working with partners to
deliver initiatives which
support a safer town centre
e.g. collaborating with Met
Police, Pubwatch, RadioLink,
additional security

If you have any questions or wish to discuss any of the
details in this document further, please don’t hesitate to
contact Kirsten Henly, Chief Executive on 020 8547 1221
or email kirsten.henly@kingstonfirst.co.uk

3

6

Improving the experience of
town centre streets and space
e.g. quality paving, street
furniture streetscapes,
improving air quality,
clean and attractive streets

Providing additional business
support opportunities
e.g. business networking
events, training and skills, cost
savings, employee health and
wellbeing initiatives

kingstonfirst.co.uk

C14

Your town
Your thoughts
Your Kingston First
Share your views on the future of Kingston and help us
shape the business plan for Kingston First’s fourth term.
Consultation closes Friday 28 September 2018.

C15

HERE FOR YOU
SAVING YOUR BUSINESS MONEY

£65,000+

ACTUAL COST SAVINGS TO MEMBERS
SINCE 2015

Over the years we have continued to develop a number of cost
saving initiatives that have helped our members make substantial
savings including a free daily recycling service and access to a
cost saving team to help reduce every day costs. We also introduced
a programme of free training and business workshops to upskill
workers across a number of topics from first aid to social media and
recently negotiated discounted car parking for employees.

YOUR KEEP IT KINGSTON CARD

10,400+

KINGSTON EMPLOYEES SAVING MONEY
WITH THE KEEP IT KINGSTON CARD

With over 10,000 cards distributed in its first year, the Keep it
Kingston scheme enables Kingston employees to save money,
while providing local businesses with a platform to promote their
services, products and offers.

MARKETING YOUR TOWN

65,000

‘WHAT’S ON’ BOOKLETS DELIVERED
TWICE A YEAR TO LOCAL HOMES

14,000+

FOLLOWERS ON SOCIAL MEDIA

1.1m+ kg

We are the custodians of the ‘In Kingston’ brand, investing in
marketing and PR to promote the town’s strong retail, leisure, events
and cultural offer across a range of platforms. We deliver yearround marketing campaigns to raise the profile of the town along
with printed visitor maps and ‘What’s On’ guides and the popular
Thumbs Up It’s Thursday programme during school holidays.

KEEPING YOUR STREETS SAFER
A secure town centre is fundamental to an effective trading
environment which is why we offer a dedicated reporting system
for sharing the latest crime intelligence and a Radiolink system
linking businesses directly with CCTV and each other. Alongside
this, Kingston First coordinate Pubwatch and Kingston Business
Against Crime schemes; uniting businesses to share experience
and take action.

ENHANCING YOUR TOWN CENTRE
Kingston First contributes significantly to initiatives that improve
the look and feel of the town’s street scene to ensure Kingston is
an attractive centre for people to visit and do business in. Twice a
year we deliver a deep clean of Kingston’s pavements, we invest in
the town centre Christmas lighting, seasonal planting and street
dressing whilst our ranger team work daily to paint street furniture,
remove graffiti and keep the environment clean and welcoming.

WASTE RECYCLED EVERY YEAR
FOR FREE

414

MEMBERS ATTENDED TRAINING
WORKSHOPS OR SEMINARS SINCE 2017

40,000+

TASKS ACTIONED BY OUR RANGER
TEAM THIS CURRENT TERM

98,000 m
PAVEMENT CLEANED
EVERY YEAR

2

13 YEARS

C16

OF SUPPORT AND DELIVERY
As the UK’s first business improvement district
(BID), Kingston First has been driving initiatives to
support the commercial success of the business
community in Kingston since 2005. We deliver
exceptional services that ensure Kingston is a
thriving and attractive environment to do business
in, as well as a vibrant and exciting destination for
people to visit, shop, learn, live and work in. We
also manage the day-to-day running of Kingston’s
markets, ensuring the history of our market town
continues to be celebrated.
As we near the end of our third five year term we
are now seeking your feedback and suggestions to
assist us in preparing our fourth term business plan
for 2020-2024, ahead of our renewal ballot in the
summer of 2019.
Kingston First is funded by 1% levy on the
rateable value of businesses and organisations
operating in the town centre BID area. Details
about the BID area and our funding are available
at kingstonfirst.co.uk/aboutus

YOU AND YOUR BUSINESS
Complete your details below and your comments overleaf then return this form
in the freepost envelope provided to:
Kingston First, 3rd Floor Neville House, 55 Eden Street, Kingston upon Thames, KT1 1BW
Or do feel free to drop into the office and speak to one of the team.
Alternatively, you can complete this form online at kingstonfirst.co.uk/consultation
Your Details
Name

Job Title

Business Name

Telephone

Email address
Street Address
Postcode
Which sector best describes your business?
Retail

Pub/Bar

Restaurant/Café

Office/Commercial

Hotel

Art/Culture

Professional Services

Health Service

Other (please state)

C17

YOUR
THOUGHTS

2015-2019

CURRENT TERM PROJECTS AND SERVICES
Please rate on a scale of 1-5 how valuable you feel the following Kingston First projects
and services have been to your business and the town

1 – not very valuable

5 – very valuable

PLEASE TICK

Free recycling service with First Mile

1

2

3

4

5

Free training and workshops

1

2

3

4

5

Keep it Kingston card		

1

2

3

4

5

Cost saving on day-to-day business services

1

2

3

4

5

Online presence with the ‘In Kingston’ website and social media

1

2

3

4

5

Summer and Christmas marketing campaigns

1

2

3

4

5

Raising the profile of the town through press coverage and press visits

1

2

3

4

5

Investing in summer banners, Christmas lights and floral installations

1

2

3

4

5

Providing Radiolink and crime reduction initiatives

1

2

3

4

5

Providing a clean and welcoming town centre

1

2

3

4

5

Delivering the Christmas Market

1

2

3

4

5

Do you have any comments regarding the projects and services we have been delivering this term?

C18

2020-2024

FUTURE PROJECTS AND SERVICES FOR OUR FOURTH TERM
Please place the following objectives in order of how much of a priority
they are to you and your business .

1 – highest priority

PLEASE ONLY USE
EACH NUMBER ONCE

6 – lowest priority

•	Representing the town centre business community and lobbying on issues
that are important to you (e.g. Crossrail2, business rates, town centre issues)
•	Working with partners to improve access and connectivity into and
around Kingston town centre (e.g. car parking, signage, public transport)
•	Improving the experience of town centre streets and space (e.g. quality paving/
streetscapes and street furniture, improving air quality, clean and attractive streets)
•	Providing additional business support opportunities (e.g. business networking
events, training and skills, cost savings, employee health and wellbeing initiatives)
•	Promoting Kingston as a destination
(e.g. organising events, driving tourism, place marketing)
•	Working with partners to deliver initiatives which support a safer town centre
(e.g. collaborating with Met Police, Pubwatch, RadioLink, additional security)		
Do you have any ideas for new projects that you would like Kingston First to consider
for our fourth term or any particular initiatives that you think should be high priority?

YOUR VOTE

VOTER DETAILS

In principle, will you support Kingston First for
a fourth five-year term by voting yes in the renewal
ballot in June 2019?

If you are not the person who will have authority
to vote, please complete their details below.

Yes

No

Would you like to add any comments to your answer?

Name
Job Title
Email address
Telephone
Street Address

Postcode

Thank you for taking the time to complete this consultation survey.

C19

WHAT
HAPPENS
NEXT?
Once the consultation process has finished and been
reviewed, we will produce our proposed Business Plan for
our fourth term and share this with you in early 2019 ahead
of our renewal ballot in June. We’ll also be in touch in the
meantime to keep you updated on our projects and services.
If you have any questions or wish to discuss any of the
details in this document further, please don’t hesitate to
contact Kirsten Henly, Chief Executive on 020 8547 1221
or email kirsten.henly@kingstonfirst.co.uk

Kingston First
3rd Floor Neville House
55 Eden Street
Kingston upon Thames
Surrey KT1 1BW
T 020 8547 1221
info@kingstonfirst.co.uk
kingstonfirst.co.uk
Company Registered
in England No.3838618

